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EXAMINER 

4 

Thursday Morning Session, 

May 3, 2007. 

PRICE: Good morning. The 

Commission has set for hearing at this time and this 

place case number 05-

Complaint 

Operators 

attorney-

of Bradley 

-726-WS-CSS, In the Matter of the 

J. Bennett, Sr. versus Utility 

Corporation. 

My name is Gregory Price. I'm the 

examiner assigned to preside by the 

Commission over this 

with the 

Bennett, 

with the 

Columbus 

I'd like 

complainant. 

case. 

to take appearances beginning 

Mr. Bennett. 

MR. BENNETT; Yes. My name is Bradley 

101 Amy Lane, Byesville, Ohio. 

EXAMINER 

MR. COX: 

law firm of 

PRICE; Thank. 

Yes. My name is David G. Cox 

Lane, Alton & Horst here in 

on behalf of Utility Operators Corporation, 

Respondent. 

EXAMINER PRICE; Are there any 

preliminary matters that we need to address before we 

begin tak ing testimony? 

MR. COX; No, I can't think of any. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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like 

state 

to 

EXAMINER PRICE: Mr. Bennett, wou 

provide testimony today? 

MR. BENNETT: Ye 

EXAMINER 

(Witness 

EXAMINER 

PRICE: 

sworn.) 

PRICE: 

your name and address 

please? 

Ohio. 

previous 

under 

your 

copy 

s, sir. 

Please come up h 

Please be seated 

for the record. 

THE WITNESS: Bradley J. Bennett. 

EXAMINER PRICE: And your address 

5 

Id you 

ere. 

and 

r 

THE WITNESS: 101 Amy Lane, Byesville, 

EXAMINER 

ly sent some 

PRICE: Mr. Bennett, you 

documents, and it's my 

standing you'd like to 

testimony. 

of 

received 

received 

a l l )r ave 

had 

submit them as part of 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

EXAMINER 

this? 

MR. COX: 

PRICE: 

Yes, I 

something on April 

Mr. Cox, do you 

believe I do. I 

27th which is — 

were newspaper articles. 

EXAMINER PRICE: 

the same copy here. 

We ' 11 just make 

I have one for 

have 

what 

sure 

the 

a 

I 

we 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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reporter. I'm going 

as Bennett Exhibit 1 

(EXHIBIT 

EXAMINER 

to go a 

MARKED 

PRICE: 

like to describe Bennett Exh 

6 

head and have this marked 

FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

Mr. Bennett, would 

ibit 1, please? 

THE WITNESS: Really, basically what 

says here was that treatment 

handle what had happened had 

adequately, and it wasn't. 

EXAMINER PRICE: 

you 

it 

facility was able to 

it been taken care 

Okay. Mr. Cox, do 

have any objection to the admission of Bennett 

Exhibit 1 to this proceeding 

MR. COX: 

this hearing. 

EXAMINER 

we're going to admit 

in this proceeding. 

(EXHIBIT 

EXAMINER 

No obj 

PRICE: 

Bennett 

•p 

ection for purposes 

On my motion, then. 

of 

you 

of 

Exhibit 1 to this record 

ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.) 

PRICE: 

ahead and give your testimon 

Mr. Bennett, please 

y in this case. 

go 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



1 BRADLEY J. BENNETT, SR. 

2 being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, 

3 testified and was examined as follows: 

4 DIRECT TESTIMONY 

5 THE WITNESS: The way I understand it, on 

6 the 8^^ of September is when this happened at our 

7 home the first time, and then the second time was on 

8 the 17th of September. Both times the roads was 

9 clear. 

10 EXAMINER PRICE; The road was what? 

11 MR. BENNETT: There was no water on the 

12 roads. 

13 EXAMINER PRICE: Okay. 

14 MR. BENNETT: In front of my house, my 

15 house wasn't surrounded by water or anything like 

16 that. But I did have raw sewage coming up through my 

17 floor drains on both occasions. 

18 EXAMINER PRICE: Is there anything else 

19 you'd like the Commission to --

20 MR. BENNETT: Other than this exhibit 

21 right here that I turned in and the dates that I got 

22 on this other paperwork that Mr. Cox had sent me, the 

23 dates don't coincide, they're later dates, and some 

24 of the pictures that he'd sent in from newspaper 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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clippings out of the J e f f e r s o n i a n , their dates are — 

they're two or three days later than my dates of when 

this happened to me. And the roads that they're 

saying that were underwater, those roads are roads 

that go underwater occasionally a lot of times. 

EXAMINER PRICE: When you say 

"occasionally," do you know approximately how much 

rainfall causes those roads to go underwater? 

THE WITNESS: Some of the roads within 

probably an inch to 2 inches of water. 

EXAMINER PRICE: And can you tell me 

exactly or to the best -- approximately how much 

water came into your basement on these two days? 

THE WITNESS: Six to 8 inches. 

EXAMINER PRICE: Six to 8 inches. 

THE WITNESS; And that wasn't water, it 

was human waste. 

EXAMINER PRICE: And it came up through 

your floor drain? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

EXAMINER PRICE: And can you tell the 

Commission exactly what you're seeking here today? 

THE WITNESS: Well, what we're seeking is 

we'd like restitution for everything that we have 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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lost. And 

because our 

concerned, 

to live in 

else you'd 

understand 

cross-exami 

By Mr. Cox: 

Q. 

9 

we don't feel clean in our own home 

home is totally, as far as we're 

is totally a loss, but we're still having 

these conditions. 

EXAMINER PRICE: Okay. Is there anything 

like the commissioners to know or to 

as part of your case? 

THE WITNESS: No, that would be it. 

EXAMINER PRICE: Mr. Cox, 

nation? 

MR. COX: Yes, Mr. Price. Thank you. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

Mr. Bennett, you're complaining about the 

Utility Operators Corporation wastewater treatment 

plant? 

A. 

Q. 

Subdivision 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, sir. 

And is that known as the Rolling Hills 

--

Yes, sir. 

-- plant? Have you ever seen the plant? 

Yes, sir. 

How many times have you seen the plant? 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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but 

A. 

probabl 

Q. 

A, 

Q. 

10 

Oh, I don't go out that road very often. 

y seven to eight times, maybe ten. 

How long have you lived at 101 Amy Lane? 

It will be 20 years in December. 

And when you've seen the plant, the 

Utility Operators Corporation plant, did it appear to 

be ( 

you 

the 

the 

^peratir 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

always 

Q. 

A, 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A, 

Q. 

plant? 

A. 

Q. 

plant? 

A. 

Q. 

g at the times that you saw it? 

When I drove by? 

Yeah, when you drove by. 

Yeah, it appeared to be operating, but 

noticed a smell, a real bad smell. 

It's a sewage plant, right? 

Yeah. 

Have you ever been inside the plant? 

No. 

Have you ever taken a tour of the plant? 

No. 

Do you know what type of equipment is in 

No. 

Do you know what type of machinery is in 

No. 

Have you ever worked in a wastewater 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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treatment 

A. 

Q. 

11 

plant? 

No. 

Do you know how a wastewater treatment 

plant operates? 

A. 

Q. 

Operators 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

Have you ever worked for Utility 

Corporation? 

No. 

Do you know how the Rolling Hills 

Subdivision wastewater treatment plant operates? 

A. 

Q. 

plant is 

No. 

Do you know how a wastewater treatment 

maintained or what constitutes proper 

maintenance? 

A. Proper maintenance would be they're being 

taken care of and maintained properly. 

Q. And do you know what is involved in that 

at a wastewater treatment plant? 

A. 

would be 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

I would say, yeah, I do, I know what 

involved in it. 

And what's the basis of your knowledge? 

Myself personally? 

Yeah. 

Out of my own mind that they should do 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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1 manual inspections of their system. 

2 Q. Do you know whether or not they do 

3 inspections of their system? 

4 A. Well, apparently after what happened, no, 

5 I don't think they do. 

6 Q. But do you know whether or not UOC 

7 conducts inspections of its system? 

8 A. No. 

9 Q. Now, you are alleging on September S^h, i 

10 believe, and September 17^^, you had two incidences 

11 where you had sewage backup in your basement, right? 

12 A. Yes, sir. 

13 Q. Are you claiming that that sewage backed 

14 up as a result of a failure of the Rolling Hills 

15 Subdivision plant? 

16 A. Yes, sir. 

17 Q. Okay, What failed at the plant? 

18 A. I have no idea what failed at the plant, 

19 but it was — the plant was inadequately taken care 

20 of. 

21 Q. And how do you know that? 

22 A. Articles I've read in the paper. 

2 3 Q. But do you have personal knowledge that 

24 the plant was inadequately taken care of? 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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A. 

do, yes. 

Q. 

A. 

13 

Yeah, I'd say personal knowledge, yes. I 

What's that personal knowledge based on? 

I live at 101 Amy Lane, Byesville, I'm 

home every day. There should be a manhole inspection 

there. Very seldom, if ever, have I ever seen them 

do it. 

Q. 

September 

there was 

you have p 

the plant 

A. 

I'm sorry, I was talking about 

8th anci September 17th, you allege that 

a failure at the plant, and I'm curious, do 

>ersonal knowledge that something failed at 

to cause sewage to back up in your home? 

Well, evidently something did fail at the 

plant because sewage did back up into our home. 

Q. 

September 

A, 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

called mor 

reports? 

A, 

Q. 

It rained a lot on September 8th ^̂ ĵ 

17th^ didn't it? 

No. It rained, but I've s e e n more rain. 

You're familiar with Ohio EPA, right? 

Somewhat. 

Okay, Are you familiar with what are 

thly operating records or monthly operating 

I think I have one. 

Okay. Do you have one for September 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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2004? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

received on 

A. 

Q. 

received on 

A. 

Q. 

received on 

A. 

exhibit if 

Bennett 2. 

Yes, I think I do. 

Have you looked at it? 

Uh-huh. 

Do you recall how much precipitation 

September 7th7 

No. 

Do you recall how much precipitation 

September sth? 

No. 

Do you recall how much precipitation 

September 17th7 

No, sir. 

14 

was 

was 

was 

MR. COX: Mr, Price, I have a copy of an 

you want to see it. 

EXAMINER PRICE: I do. 

MR. COX: I'd like to mark this as 

EXAMINER PRICE: You want to mark it 

Bennett 2 or UOC number — 

MR. COX: Oh, however. 

EXAMINER PRICE: Let's mark it UOC 1 

MR, COX: UOC 1, okay. 

(EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

as 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Q. 

what's been 

15 

(By Mr. Cox) Mr. Bennett, I'm handing you 

identified as UOC Exhibit 1. Do you have 

that in front of you? 

A. 

Q. 

have to say 

A. 

Q. 

Uh-huh. 

Do you see the column -- Mr. Bennett, you 

"yes" or "no" so the — 

Yes. 

-- court reporter can get that down. 

Do you see the column identified as 

Precipitation? 

A. 

Q. 

down at the 

do you see 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Form"? 

A. 

Q. 

Corporation 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

Now this is a monthly operating report. 

bottom it says form and number EPA 4500; 

that? 

No, sir. Please point that out. 

At the very corner. 

Oh, okay. Yes. 

And at the top it says "Monthly Report 

Yes, sir. 

And it's for the Utility Operators 

7 

Yes. 

And it's for the month of September 2004. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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A. 

Q. 

wastewater 

A. 

1 ^ ' 

16 

Yes. 

Isn't it true on September 7th ^he 

treatment plant reported 2 inches of rain? 

Yes. By this paper, yes. 

And isn't it true they reported 5 inches 

1 of rain the next day on September Sth^ 

A. 

Q. 

allege you 

A. 

Q. 

wastewater 

isn't that 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

And September 8th -i_s the date that you 

had sewage backup in your basement, right? 

Yes. 

And then also on September 17th^ the 

treatment plant reported 6 inches of rain; 

correct? 

That's what they reported, yes. 

And that's the other day that you allege 

1 sewage backed up in your basement; is that correct? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, 

Now, isn't it true that during this time 

period Guernsey County suffered from the effects of 

hurricanes 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Ivan and Frances? 

Yes, Guernsey County did suffer. 

And isn't it true --

But — 

I'm sorry, if you need to say more, go 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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ahead. 

A. 

area, no. 

which you' 

17 

Guernsey County did suffer, but in our 

we did not suffer from the amount of rain 

re reporting here. And I don't know where 

the reports of these measurements come from, but --

if they come from Byesville, Cambridge, where they 

came from. 

Q. 

wastewater 

Do you know what service area the 

treatment plant at the Rolling Hills 

Subdivision serves? 

A, 

Q. 

A, 

Q. 

complaint 

guess. 

Q. 

identified 

front you? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yeah; Rolling Hills Subdivision. 

Did that area experience any rain at all? 

Yes, we experienced rain. 

I want to direct your attention to the 

that you filed in this matter. 

MR. COX: This will be UOC Exhibit 2, I 

(EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

Mr. Bennett, I'm handing you what's been 

as UOC Exhibit 2, Do you have this in 

Yes. 

Can you identify that for the Commission? 

It's our complaint that was filed. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Q. 

you talking 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

signatures. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A, 

Q. 

correct? 

A. 

Q. 

complaint? 

A. 

Q. 

complaint. 

18 

And when you say "our complaint," who are 

about? 

My wife and myself. 

What's your wife's name? 

Deborah. 

Deborah. Down at the bottom there's two 

Yes. 

Okay. Is one of those signatures yours? 

Yes, sir. 

Which signature? 

The one on top. 

And whose signature is underneath yours? 

My wife's. 

And it's dated May 27th^ 195; is that 

Yes, sir. 

Now, who actually filled out the 

My wife. 

Okay, It says in there, in the 

"Therefore, my husband, son, and myself," 

is that what it says? 

A. Yes. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C , Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Q. 

19 

Okay. Are you the husband that's being 

referred to? 

A. 

Q. 

referring 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

September 

your 

'05, 

'05? 

sure 

home. 

A. 

Q. 

right 

A. 

Q. 

Why 

A, 

why y 

Yes. 

Okay, And when it says "myself," is that 

to Deborah? 

Yes. 

And who's the son? 

My son Brandon. 

You have a son that lives there with you? 

Yes. 

Okay. You allege on September 8th ĝ ;̂} 

17th there was sewage that backed up into 

right? 

Yes. 

And the complaint was filed May 27th^ 

7 

Yes. 

What did you do from September '04 to May 

did it take so long to file the complaint? 

It took so long --

EXAMINER PRICE: One second. I'm not 

ou feel the need to ask that question, 

MR. COX: I'll withdraw it. 

EXAMINER PRICE: Thank you. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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20 

Q. From May 2004 until, I'm sorry, from 

September 2004 until May 2005 what, if anything, did 

you do to alleviate the alleged damage that occurred 

to your house as a result of the sewage backup? 

A. My son and myself, we done a lot of 

cleaning in our home, and then Mr. Bischoff had sent 

in a cleaning company, they come in and sprayed our 

house with an antibacterial stuff. 

Then on the second occurrence when it 

happened they sent another -- the same company back 

into the home to take care of it, and alls they done 

was pressure washed and sprayed, it was an 

antibacterial. 

Q. And UOC paid for that? 

A. Yes. 

Q. From September 2004 until May 2005 did 

you go to any doctors to have them assess your health 

that might have been impacted as a result of the 

sewage backup? 

EXAMINER PRICE: Again, I'm not sure of 

the relevance of that question, I don't think he's 

asking for -- he has a complaint for inadequate 

service. The Commission's not able to give him 

restitution damages under any circumstances, so I'm 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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1 not going to allow that question. 

2 MR. COX: Okay. I understand. 

3 Q. In fact, UOC actually suggested that you 

4 should put a plug in your drain in the basement, 

5 didn't they? 

6 A. Actually, UOC bought a drain plug to put 

7 in my basement and the drain plug would not fit in 

8 our basement, and UOC -- I did not receive the drain 

9 plug until October 4th of 2004. 

10 I also have the letter stating that I had 

11 the drain plug before the second incident, which was 

12 on the 17th __ j didn't have the drain plug -- and 

13 if I'd have put it in place, that it would have 

14 stopped that from happening to my house. Well, if I 

15 would have put that plug into my basement and stopped 

16 it from happening in my house, it would have forced 

17 it into somebody else's house and they would have had 

18 to went through the same thing that me and my family 

19 went through. 

20 Q. And how do you know it would have gone 

21 into somebody else's house? 

22 A. The next lowest house there would have 

23 got it. 

24 Q. How do you know that? 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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A. 

the water 

22 

Because it was -- I got the pictures of 

pumping up out of the floor, the water and 

sewage coming up out of the floor. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Out of your basement. 

Yes. 

But how do you know it would have backed 

up into somebody else's house? 

A. 

plugged. 

Q. 

Well, unless they had their drains 

it's going somewhere else. 

How do you know if they had their drains 

plugged or not? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

have gone 

A. 

I don't know. 

So you don't know whether the backup — 

Well, if I --

Sir, I'm still asking the question-

So you don't know where any sewage would 

if you had plugged up your drain. 

Yes; I think it would have come out my 

washing machine. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

to raise 

A. 

How do you know that? 

Because it's only like 30 inches above. 

Do you know how much pressure is required 

water 30 inches? 

No, I don't know how much -- I don't know 
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how much p 

pressure I 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

defined as 

A. 

Q. 

defined as 

A. 

Q. 

rates, the 

A, 

Q. 

23 

ressure is required, but I know how much 

had coming out of my floor drain. 

Are you an engineer? 

No, sir, I'm not. 

Do you have a college degree? 

No, sir. 

Have you ever studied physics? 

No, sir. 

MR. COX: If I can have a minute. 

Are you aware, Mr. Bennett, that UOC is 

a public utility under the law? 

Explain that again. 

Are you aware of whether or not UOC is 

a public utility under the law? 

Yes, I'm sure they are. 

So you're aware that when they establish 

y need the approval of the Commission. 

Yes. 

MR, COX: Mark this as UOC Exhibit 3. 

(EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

Mr. Bennett, I'm going to hand you what's 

been identified as UOC Exhibit 3. Do you have that 

in front o 

A. 

f you? 

Yes. 
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24 

This is called a Staff Report of 

Investigation In the Matter of Utility Operators 

Corporation for an Increase in Rates and Charges. Do 

you see that on the title page? 

A. 

Q. 

division of 

that? 

A. 

Q. 

19. Do you 

A. 

Q. 

"Collection 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

treatment p. 

Yes. 

And this was received in the Docketing 

PUCO on January 25th^ 2001; do you see 

Yes. 

I'd like to turn your attention to page 

have that in front of you, Mr. Bennett? 

Yes. 

Do you see the heading that says 

& Treatment"? 

Yes, 

Go to the second paragraph below that. 

Yes. 

The first sentence reads "This sewage 

Lant's approximately 30-year-old activated 

sludge/extended aeration system can handle up to a 

hundred thousand gallons per day." Do you see that? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

Do you know if that's the volume that the 

wastewater treatment plant at the Rolling Hills 
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1 Subdivision can handle on a daily basis? 

2 A. No, sir, I don't. 

3 . Q. Okay. Do you know how much in terms of 

4 gallons per day the wastewater treatment received 

5 on September 7th ^̂ f̂  gth ^̂ ^̂  September 17th ^f 

6 2004? 

7 A. No, sir. 

8 Q . I direct your attention to page 21. 

9 Under the section identified "Records and Reports," 

10 do you see that? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. The second sentence says "Since that 

13 time" -- and this is referring to the time since PUCO 

14 began regulating the Rolling Hills Subdivision 

15 wastewater treatment plant; do you see that? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. "Since that time, the Company has 

18 complied with Ohio Administrative Code Section 

19 4901:1-15-11(B)(7) and established a comprehensive 

20 manhole inspection and maintenance plan." Do you see 

21 that? 

22 A. Yes, 

23 Q. So would you agree with the Commission 

24 that since 2001 UOC has an established manhole 
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inspection 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

26 

and maintenance plan? 

No. 

And why would you not agree with that? 

Because I live right at 101 Amy Lane, I 

can see straight down the road to the school, and I 

can see several manholes down through there, and no. 

I don't agree with that. 

Q. 

A. 

daylight. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

question. 

knowledge. 

Q. 

Company now 

Are you saying that --

Unless they do it from dark until 

Do you know if UOC inspects its manholes? 

Not to my knowledge. 

Do you know if they do or if they don't? 

EXAMINER PRICE: He answered your 

MR. COX: He said --

EXAMINER PRICE: He said not to his 

MR, COX: — not to his knowledge. 

EXAMINER PRICE: Not to his knowledge. 

MR. BENNETT: Exactly. 

Okay. The next sentence says, "The 

regularly inspects its manholes in the 

lowest sections of the collection system . , , and 
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keeps exce 

inspection 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

27 

llent records on their locations and on the 

's findings"; do you see that? 

Yes. 

Do you agree with that statement? 

No. 

And why not? 

Because as I explained previously, I live 

on the corner, I can see straight down the road, I 

know when 

manholes. 

Q. 

seven days 

A, 

Q. 

A. 

but there' 

Q-

right? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

findings, 

A. 

there's someone in there looking down the 

Are you at your house 24 hours a day, 

a week? 

Basically, yes. 

You never leave your house? 

Oh, I leave my house occasionally, yes. 

s usually somebody in my house constantly. 

But you wouldn't be there constantly. 

Yes, I'm basically there constantly. 

You're basically there constantly? 

Uh-huh. 

So you disagree with the Commission's 

then; is that it? 

I disagree with the manhole inspections. 
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yeah, I disagree with them. 

Q. 

the Staff's 

A. 

report? 

made your p 

Q. 

identified 

do you see 

A. 

Q. 

Staff's reg 

officials. 

reported no 

the rental 

firsthand k 

statement? 

A. 

Q. 

So you disagree with the 

report. 

28 

statements in 

Where is the statements in the Staff's 

EXAMINER PRICE: Mr. Cox, 

oint. I think we can move 

MR. COX: Okay. 

I think you've 

on. 

On the same page, 21, there's a section 

"Public Officials and Customer Contacts"; 

that section? 

Yes. 

The Staff's report says " 

ular interviews with local 

Jackson Township Trustee, 

problems with the Company 

During the 

public 

Stanley King, 

, adding that 

home he owns in the subdivision gives him 

nowledge of its service." 

Yes. 

Do you have any reason to 

that statement? 

A. 

Q. 

Do you see that 

disagree with 

Yes, I do disagree with that statement. 

In what way do you disagree with that 
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statement? 

A. 

have sewag 

Q. 

A. 

basically 

bought the 

Q. 

A. 

to him buy 

Q. 

A. 

the home. 

Q. 

mean there 

A. 

Q. 

house? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

29 

That home there I am almost positive did 

e in it at one time. 

And how do you know that? 

Because the people that lived there. 

they moved out and Stan King come in and 

home and redid the house and resold it. 

What does that have to do with sewage? 

It had a sewage backup in the home prior 

ing the home. 

How do you know that? 

Because I knew the people that lived in 

Just because you knew them, does that 

was sewage there, or what? 

I seen it. 

Oh, you saw the sewage in that other 

I seen the sewage in the home. 

Oh, you did? 

Yes. 

When was this? 

I couldn't basically give you a year. 

Was it before September 2004 or after? 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

other home 

backed up. 

A, 

Q. 

that backe 

A, 

Q. 

and we're 

backed up. 

A, 

Q. 

30 

Oh, yes, it was before then. 

How many times did you see it? 

On one occasion. 

On one occasion. So you're aware of one 

where you believe there was sewage that 

right? 

Oh, yeah. 

On one occasion. And there was sewage 

d up in your home on two occasions, right? 

Yes, 

And you've lived in the area for 20 years 

talking three occasions where sewage has 

That I know of. 

That you know of, correct. That's 

correct, that you have personal knowledge of. 

A. 

Q. 

inadequate 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

And you believe that constitutes 

service on behalf of UOC? 

Yes, sir. 

Under the same section on page 21 of 

Exhibit UOC 3, the second sentence says, "The Staff 

also contacted officials in the nearby village of 

Byesville, who also said they had had no problems 
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31 

with the Company. All of the several customers 

interviewed during the investigation expressed 

satisfaction with their service." Do you see those 

statements? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, I do. 

Do you have any reason to disagree with 

those statements? 

A. The village of Byesville is not part of 

Jackson Township. 

Q. 

any reason 

A. 

statements, 

Q. 

A. 

But that's not my question. Do you have 

to disagree with these statements? 

Yes, I would disagree with these 

In what sense? 

In the sense of the exhibit that I turned 

in right here. 

Q. 

A, 

in Byesvill 

not -- the 

minute. 

A. 

You mean Bennett Exhibit 1? 

Yes. If you go to -- it's caused a stink 

e, and if you go to the paragraph, well 

second-to-the-last paragraph. Excuse me a 

EXAMINER PRICE: Take your time. 

Yes, it would be the second-to-the-last 

paragraph on the first page, it says "The good thing 
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about it 

although 

is the 

it is 

MR. 

Mr. Price. 

plant is very capable of 

in severely bad shape." 

32 

being run 

COX: I don't have anything else. 

EXAMINER PRICE: Mr. Bennett, 

point when if y 

counsel would h 

examination of 

you have 

responds 

this is the 

ou were represented by counsel, your 

ave an opportunity to do a 

you. Since you don't have 

anything that you would like to 

to the 

cross-examinati 

of water 

inches o: 

house up 

basement 

THE 

issues that came up in 

on, now would be the time 

REDIRECT TESTIMONY 

WITNESS: He referred to 

redirect 

counsel, if 

add that 

to do it. 

the amount 

that we received. In '98 we received 10 

t water 

to the 

I had water clean up around my 

basement windows, an inch 

windows of my house, and I didn' 

sewage or anyth 

my basement in 

Whe 

was no water up 

ing coming up out of my fl 

'98. 

n this here took place in 

against my house, the roa 

below the 

t have raw 

oor drain in 

'04, there 

ds was not 

underwater there, and I had raw sewage coming into my 

house. 
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By Mr, 

sewage 

you've 

Cox 

Q. 

EXAMINER PRICE 

THE WITNESS: 

EXAMINER PRICE 

• 

So 

twice in 

lived th 

inadequate 

I don' 

A. 

33 

: Is that it? 

Yes. 

: Mr. Cox, recross? 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

let me get 

your house 

ere and you 

service. 

Yes 

MR. 

• 

COX: I do 

EXAMINER PRICE 

t have an 

witnesses 

and sa y --

THE 

(Wi 

y questions 

WITNESS: 

this straight; you had raw 

in the 20 years that 

think that constitutes 

n't have anything else. 

: Thank you, Mr. Bennett, 

for you. You're excused. 

Okay. 

tness excused.) 

EXAMINER PRICE 

that 

MR. 

MRS 

would like 

BENNETT: 

. BENNETT: 

EXAMINER PRICE 

MRS 

MR. 

. BENNETT: 

BENNETT: 

: Do you have any other 

to testify today? 

Would you like to testify? 

Am I allowed to come up 

: Sure. Absolutely. 

Okay. 

I'll leave this stuff right 
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1 here for her. 

2 MRS. BENNETT: Honey, can you take this 

3 up for me, please? 

4 MR. COX: Mr. Price, just for the record, 

5 we served discovery and asked for identification of 

6 witnesses, she was not identified as a witness, so 

7 just for the record we'll object to the testimony. 

8 EXAMINER PRICE: Overruled. 

9 (Witness sworn.) 

10 EXAMINER PRICE: Please state your name 

11 and address for the record. 

12 THE WITNESS: My name is Deborah J. 

13 Bennett. I live at 101 Amy Lane, Byesville, Ohio. 

14 Do you need zip code or anything like that? 

15 EXAMINER PRICE: No, that's fine. 

16 THE WITNESS: Okay. 

17 EXAMINER PRICE: Please proceed. 

18 - - -

19 DEBRA BENNETT 

20 being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, 

21 testified as follows: 

22 DIRECT TESTIMONY 

23 THE WITNESS: Okay. Now, some of the 

24 things that my husband -- I wanted to speak out and I 
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couldn't speak out, but I 

EXAMINER PRICE 

THE WITNESS: 

paperwork that we recently 

okay, that stuff is in the 

the floods and all that st 

Cambridge. We don't live 

can now? 

: Yes. 

Okay. Number one. 

received from Mr. 

police log, okay, 

uff. And that's in 

in Cambridge, we do 

in Byesville, we live in Jackson Township, ok 

EXAMINER PRICE 

Township from Cambridge? 

THE WITNESS: 

miles --

EXAMINER PRICE 

THE WITNESS: 

that city limit, okay? 

We live in a s 

and then another question 

husband -- Mr. Cox -- how 

of something being inadequ 

Mr. Bischoff's employees; 

made that statement to us. 

35 

the 

Cox, 

about 

n't live 

ay? 

; And how far is Jackson 

We'll say like five 

: Okay. 

-- okay, before you 

ubdivision, okay? 

that he had asked m 

would we get the kn 

ate and run down. 

they were the ones 

They were -- they 

people that go down to that station when they 

they know what it's like. 

pointed that out to us, ok 

They were the ones 

ay? 

get to 

Now --

y 

owledge 

that 

are the 

do, 

that 
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And the 

36 

time frame of getting in touch 

with them at the time of these happenings and the 

time frame of us filing a complaint with yourselves. 

during that time we 

Mr. Bischoff, okay? 

were trying to work with 

But he wasn't coming up with any 

answers, such as I do believe it is a law that you 

must carry insurance on your businesses. We 

definitely know car insurance, house insurance, 

everybody must carry insurance, and that was all my 

husband wanted from him, his insurance company's 

name. Well, he didn't have one. 

Does he 

because we have yet 

believe if he doesn 

have insurance? We don't know, 

to been given that answer. And I 

t, I believe he's breaking the 

law because you must carry insurance no matter what 

you have. 

I'm trying to think of anything else 

that -- let's see. 

respond, and a year 

And also I did write a paper and 

later or a couple years later 

then the newspaper writes the very same thing in 

there that I wrote. 

unique that some of 

I thought that was kind of 

the council members felt the same 

way I did, okay? But where I got my information was 

Mr. Bischoff's employees, that's where I got my 
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information from. 

And I also would drive down around the 

plant, the sewage plant, treatment plant, okay, maybe 

every other day, just checking things out, doing my 

own little investigation, and once and once only I 

did see there were two men down there, one had a 

shovel and one had a hose, and I don't know what they 

were doing because I'm not educationally inclined to 

know about that stuff, okay? I just know what 

Mr. Bischoff's employees said to my husband and 

myself. 

It's not very nice having other people's 

doo-doo and nasty stuff in your house, it's not very 

nice at all. I had just went down actually to put my 

curtains in to wash them in my washer and all of a 

sudden, whoo, and I'm screaming for my husband, okay? 

He comes down. He's like, "Get upstairs. Go. Go." 

And then I went in and I got on the phone. 

But no, I don't feel that we should 

suffer because of somebody else's negligence, and 

that's the way I feel, that they have been negligent 

in complying with taking care of things, the 

treatment plant, and maintaining their manhole covers 

and, I mean, it states in the paperwork that we sent 
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in that the people that live in the subdivision. 

their health is at risk, okay? 

No, we weren't sent to the doctor. Nc 

Because my husband had asked Mr. Bischoff "What is 

your insurance company's name?" They need to pay 

us to go to the doctor. Why should we pay that. 

okay? 

I hope I'm not leaving anything out 

because, boy, I just had my head full of things. 

guess I feel like we've been put off, not by you. 

by Mr. Bischoff and by Mr. Cox, It's been like a 

38 

. 

for 

I 

but 

little runaround. Every time something is planned, 

it gets put on hold for some ungodly reason, I dor 

know why, but it does, which is unfair to anybody 

that lives in that subdivision, I'm speaking for 

husband and myself, but I'm also speaking for 

everybody that lives in that subdivision. 

The prices of their sewage rates; 

I't 

my 

monthly. They pay a monthly sewage rate, okay? Not 

fair. 

And Mr. Bischoff's claiming, okay, he 

going to -- well, he tried, I don't know if this 

happened or not, to -- what is my word? When you 

hold on just a moment, please. 

was 

--
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but -

When 

Some 

c a n ' t 

work 

Peopl 

not c 

Yes. 

much. 

word. 

-

EXAMINER PRICE 

THE WITNESS: 

Maybe you can 

EXAMINER PRICE 

THE WITNESS: 

you can no longer --

people do it all the 

I think of this wore 

around 

EXAMINER PRICE 

the word. 

THE WITNESS: 

e, when they default 

hapter 

Yes. 

11 — 

EXAMINER PRICE 

THE WITNESS: 

: Take 

Thank y 

help me 

: Okay 

Okay. 

people 

time, 

[? 

: Why 

Around 

39 

your time. 

ou. 

on this word. 

Probably not, 

All right. Okay, 

do it all the time. 

My goodness, why 

don't you try to 

the word? Okay. 

in their bills, and it's 

: You mean bankruptcy? 

Bankruptcy. Thank you. 

Yes. That's the word 

I don't know why I 

bankruptcy. 

couldn' 

But yes, Mr. Bischoff 

Now, I don't 

or not. I don't know, I j 

Opera 

EXAMINER PRICE 

tors Corporation? 

know if 

ust — 

: Mr, 

Thank you very 

t remember that 

was trying to file 

that went through 

Bischoff or Utility 
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what 

cross 

THE WITNESS: 

EXAMINER PRICE 

THE WITNESS: 

EXAMINER PRICE 

THE WITNESS: 

I guess that p 

I would like to 

EXAMINER 

say. 

PRICE 

THE WITNESS: 

EXAMINER 

-examination? 

MR. COX: 

EXAMINER 

excused. 

her? 

PRICE 

No, 

PRICE 

THE WITNESS: 

(Witness 

Utility operation. 

40 

: Operators Corporation. 

Yes. Yes, Yes, 

: Thank you. 

That is correct. 

robably sums it all 

: Thank you. 

You're welcome. 

: Mr. Cox, 

Mr. Price. 

: Thank you. You' . 

Oh, thank you. 

excused.) 

MR, BENNETT: 

MRS. BENNETT: 

EXAMINER 

MR. COX: 

I know you overruled 

testi 

PRICE 

Just 

my ob 

fy, but just for the 

the testimony. 

up of 

re 

Am I allowed to question 

No. 

: No. Afraid not. 

for the record, Mr . Price, 

jection to having her 

record I'll move to strike 
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Bischo 

state 

you've 

43065. 

being 

ff. 

your 

got 

first 

examined an 

By Mr. 

same a 

Cox: 

Q. 

A, 

EXAMINER 

Mr. Cox, 

MR, COX: 

(Witness 

EXAMINER 

PRICE: Thank you. Over 

do you have a witness? 

Yes, I'll call Edward 

sworn,) 

PRICE: Please be seated 

name and business address for the 

THE WITNESS: Edward A. Bischoff, 

the card. 

EXAMINER 

MR. COX: 

EDWARD 

41 

ruled. 

A. 

and 

record. 

well. 

9976 Brewster Lane, Powell, Ohio 

PRICE: Mr. Cox, please 

Thank you, Mr. Price. 

A. BISCHOFF, PE, PS 

duly sworn, as prescribed by law, 

d testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

Mr. Bischoff, where do you work? 

Bischoff 

ddress, 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

And what 

Miller & Associates. At 

proceed. 

was 

the 

is Bischoff Miller & Associates? 

Civil engineering company. 

And what kind of work do they do? 
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A. We design water and sewer systems. 

subdivisions, highways. 

Q. 

system and 

A, 

Is there a difference between a wat 

a sewer system? 

Yeah, both sanitary and storm sewer 

Both sanitary sewer and storm sewer. 

Q. And is a sanitary and storm sewer s 

are they water systems --

A, 

Q. 

A, 

Q. 

A, 

Q. 

A, 

Q. 

Associates 

A. 

No. 

-- or are they sewage systems? 

They're sewage systems. 

Then what's a water system? 

Water is potable water to homes. 

Drinking water. 

Drinking water. 

Okay. And how long has Bischoff Mi 

been doing this? 

Well, Bischoff Miller's seven years 

and the prior company that Bischoff came out of 

Bischoff & 

Q. 

Associates which was formed in '71. 

And did Bischoff & Associates from 

42 

er 

• 

ystem, 

Her & 

old, 

was 

1971 

until about seven years ago, did they do the same 

kind of work that Bischoff Miller & Associates 

A, Yes. 

does? 
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Q. 

the same t 

A. 

Q-

systems --

A. 

Q. 

clients do 

So for a 

ype of wor 

Yes. 

Designin 

Yes. 

-- and s 

es --

EXAMINER 

Administrative Code 

up expert 

testimony 

proceeding 

that's all 

report. 

testimony. 

to let you 

testimony 

MR. COX: 

EXAMINER 

bout 35 

k? 

g sewer 

years 

43 

you've been doing 

systems and water 

torm water sy 

PRICE: 

any --

here. 

Yes. 

PRICE: 

should have been 

. 

MR. COX: 

the rules 

EXAMINER 

MR. COX: 

EXAMINER 

go beyond 

I fil 

Mr, 

seems 

Your 

prefil 

ed the 

required was 

PRICE: 

All d 

PRICE: 

what's 

stems. What kind of 

Cox, under the 

to me you're setting 

direct expert 

ed in the 

report. I thought 

a report, an expert 

It requires all direct 

irect 

Yes, 

testimony. 

So I'm not going 

in your report. 
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MR, COX: Well, 1 

get at. I just wanted to qu( 

expert in design and 

treatment --

EXAMINER 

farther you're going 

MR. COX: 

his testimony to the 

EXAMINER 

MR. COX: 

qualify him, then? 

EXAMINER 

as an expert witness 

MR. COX: 

44 

Lhat's what I wanted to 

alify the witness as an 

engineering of wastewater 

PRICE: 

that's 

That's 

report. 

PRICE: 

So can 

PRICE: 

• 

Okay. 

Q. (By Mr, Cox) Let 

itself. What exactly is UOC 

A. It's a not-for-p 

If that's all the 

fine 

it. 

That 

I'm going to limit 

's fine. 

I continue to try to 

I think he's qualified 

's, then, talk about UOC 

-> 

cofit corporation. It's 

a utility that provides sanitary sewage service to 

the Rolling Hills Subdivision and the school that is 

next to the subdivision, then there's a market and a 

pizza shop down the road a 1 

provides service to also. 

EXAMINER 

4? 

PRICE: 

Lttle ways that it 

You're marking this UOC 
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MR. COX: Yes. 

(EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

Q. Mr. Bischoff, I'm going to hand you 

what's been identified as UOC Exhibit 4. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Do you recognize this? 

A. Yes, this is the incorporation papers. 

Q, From the Ohio Secretary of State's 

office? 

Q 

Corporation? 

A 

Q 

corporation? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

And it's for Utility Operators 

Yes. 

Does it say it's a not-for-profit 

Yes, 

Does it give the date of its 

incorporation as December 2 6"*̂ ,̂ 1978? 

A. Yes, 

Q. So UOC has been in business as a 

nonprofit since 1978? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What's your affiliation with UOC? 

A. I'm a trustee. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

trustees is 

serve as th 

there? 

46 

How long have you been a trustee? 

From the inception. 

Okay. What's your role as a trustee? 

Well, we've served -- the board of 

similar to the board of directors, you 

5 governing body for the not-for-profit. 

EXAMINER PRICE: How many trustees are 

THE WITNESS: There's two now, there's a 

position for three. We've got one vacancy. 

Q. 

Subdivision 

A, 

Q. 

plant? 

A. 

Q. 

plant opera 

A, 

answer your 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

EXAMINER PRICE: Okay. Thank you. 

Does UOC own the Rolling Hills 

wastewater treatment plant? 

Yes. 

How long has it owned the treatment 

Since inception; '78. 

Do you know how the wastewater treatment 

tes? 

It's an extended air plant -- yes, to 

question. 

Have you been to the plant? 

Yes. 

Have you seen it in operation? 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

47 

Yes. 

Are you familiar with its operation? 

Yes. 

Okay. So you sat through the testimony 

of Mr. Bennett in this case, right? 

A. 

Q. 

September 

sewage bac 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

opinion as 

get to the 

opinion as 

basement? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. 

And Mr. Bennett claimed that on 

8th^ 2004, and September 17^^^ 2004, 

ked up into his basement. 

Yes. 

You're familiar with that? 

Yes. 

As an expert witness do you have an 

to the cause or the reason why, and I'll 

basis underlying that, but do you have an 

to how sewage backed up in Mr. Bennett's 

Yes. 

And what is your opinion? 

It was storm water generated. 

Storm water generated? 

Yes. 

By what? 

Well, you had on the 7th ^^d 8 ^ ^ , you 
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hurricane Frances come through, on the 17^^ yQ^ 

hurricane Ivan come through, the county -- the 

rainfall 

rainfall 

on the hi 

are 

that 

Q. 

gauges at the plant indicated excessive 

and the county became a disaster area based 

.gh rainfall they received from both storms. 

When you say the plant reported rainfall, 

you talking about the monthly operating report 

. was 

A. 

Q. 

have that 

enti 

can 

A. 

Q. 

tied 

give 

--

Yes, 

-- submitted earlier? I think you should 

. in front of you --

I don't have it. 

-- it's UOC Exhibit 1. 

EXAMINER PRICE: I think Mr. Bennett's 

to his copy. Do you have another copy you 

the witness? 

MR. COX: That was supposed to be for the 

court reporter. 

Mr. 

1 can 

EXAMINER PRICE: Do you have a copy for 

Bennett? 

make 

MR. COX: Yeah, I can give him a copy. I 

a copy for him, Mr. Price. 

EXAMINER PRICE: We might be able to cut 

through this. Is that not the same that is attached 
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the notice of filing respondent's expert report? 

April 18th. 

Exp 

Exh 

we ' 

han 

Mr. Bennett, do you have a copy of this? 

MR. BENNETT: Your Honor, I can't see. 

EXAMINER PRICE: It was docketed on 

It says "Notice of Filing Respondent's 

ert Report of Edward Bischoff." 

ibit 5. 

11 refer 

Q. 

MR. BENNETT: Yes, I got it. Yes. 

MR. COX: Okay. Mark this as 5, UOC 

EXAMINER PRICE: So marked. 

(EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

EXAMINER PRICE: Mr. Bennett, from now on 

to that document as UOC 5. 

(By Mr. Cox) Mr. Bischoff, I'm going to 

d you what's been marked as UOC Exhibit 5, Is 

this a copy 

Commission? 

the 

you 

Sep 

A. 

Q. 

monthly 

of the report that you filed with the 

Yes, 

If you look at the second page, is that 

operating report for September 2004 that 

were testifying about? 

A. 

Q. 

tember 7̂  

Yes, 

How much rain was reported on 

th and 8th ^nd September IS^h? 
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inches 

at the 

taken 

plant. 

A. 

, the 

The 7th is 2 inc 

17th 3_s 6 inches 

EXAMINER PRICE: 

Rolling Hills plant; 

at the 

Q. 

opinion on? 

A. 

support the 

rain. 

hes, the 8th 

-

Mr, Bischoff 

50 

is 5 

, this was 

is that correct? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

EXAMINER PRICE: 

; --

THE WITNESS: Th 

EXAMINER PRICE: 

(By Mr. Cox) Wha 

Well, the newspa 

The measurement was 

e rain gauge 

Thank you. 

t else do you 

per articles 

is at the 

base your 

certainly 

fact there was an excessive amount of 

On the 9th j traveled 

Q. 

A. 

What were your 0 

The interstate, 

because of excessive rain. 

state 

below 

of the 

plant 

Valley 

was f 1 

patrol 

Byesvi 

beams 

and th 

Drive 

coded. 

told me when I 

lie was totally 

on the bridge. 

through the 

bservations? 

77, was down 

1-70 had just 

called. The 

flooded up to 

area. 

to one lane 

opened, the 

exit ramp 

the bottom 

The area around the 

le spring -- where the road main, Spring 

I think, at the 

Some manholes 

entrance to 

in the system 

the plant 

were 
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1 overflowing with water, the low manholes, which 

2 doesn't happen when you don't have 6 inches of rain 

3 and 7 inches of rain. 

4 Q. Now, didMr. Bennett inform you that he 

5 had sewage in his basement? 

6 A. Yes. 

7 Q. Did anybody else inform you or UOC that 

8 they had sewage in their basement? 

9 A. No, 

10 Q, When Mr. Bennett informed you that there 

11 was sewage in his basement, what, if anything, did 

12 you or UOC do? 

13 A. Well, we tried to find someone to clean 

14 the basement and we had a little trouble getting 

15 ahold of the company, and we finally -- the county 

16 gave us two names and ProServ was one of them, so we 

17 sent ProServ out on the first occasion, the Bennetts 

18 had already washed down the basement so they put an 

19 antibacterial spray on, 

20 On the second occasion they went out and 

21 cleaned the basement and then put the bacterial spray 

22 on. 

23 Q. Did UOC pay for that? 

24 A. Yes. 
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Q. 

referred 

A. 

and have 

forecast 

52 

Now, in Mr. Bennett's testimony he 

to a plug in the drain. 

Well, yeah, we wanted to give him a plug 

him put it in the drain when you got 

for heavy rain. 

My understanding is he was -- didn't want 

to do that, as he said, because he was afraid another 

basement 

somewhere 

that you 

the house 

flooding. 

have us d 

Q. 

A. 

houses to 

Q. 

A, 

Columbus 

they've p 

another h 

may plug somewhere -- or, may flood 

But we kept pushing him to do that. 

I had offered to -- there is a device 

could put on the service line coming out of 

that would preclude the basement from 

and for the same reason he wasn't going to 

o that, and that's about a $4,000 fix. 

Did he say why he refused to do that? 

Same reason, that he didn't want other 

have the problem. 

What was that device called? 

I don't know what they call it. 

-- I found out about it from Columbus, and 

ut them in and had success with them. 

EXAMINER PRICE: Would it have caused 

ouse to flood? 

THE WITNESS: What would it cause? 
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1 EXAMINER PRICE: What does it cause? 

2 THE WITNESS: Well, if you had heavy 

3 rain -- well, I don't know -- I don't know 

4 Mr. Bennett's reasoning, but the issue is simply 

5 this, even when -- even in those two floods the water 

6 got up to like 6 inches, somewheres 6, 8 inches, so 

7 that's as high as it would go because at that point 

8 you're beginning to get relief from the manholes and 

9 other things. 

10 So the suggestion that if he was 

11 concerned about his washing machine drains which were 

12 36 inches off the floor --

13 EXAMINER PRICE: But you said he was 

14 concerned about his neighbor's basement. I'm asking 

15 you in your expert opinion, given the rains that we 

16 had at that time in question, would it have caused, 

17 if he had plugged his basement drain hole or had used 

18 the other device that you mentioned, would that have 

19 caused the neighbor's basement to flood? 

20 THE WITNESS: I don't believe it would, 

21 no. 

22 EXAMINER PRICE: Thank you. 

23 THE WITNESS: Okay. 

24 Q. (By Mr. Cox) And why not? 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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A. Well, because th 

manhole would start 

Q. 

"relief" 

A. 

Q. 

Is that 

earlier? 

Yes. 

Did you 

to take 

^hat you 

document 

Mr, Bennett your efforts at 

drain and 

A. 

to me the 

document 

what you d 

Yeah. I 

(EXHIBIT 

EXAMINER 

relevance 

was mailed 

MR. COX: 

took to mitigate any 

anything 

EXAMINER 

id with 

believe 

MARKED 

PRICE: 

of this 

after th 

54 

ey're higher and your 

the pressure off. 

meant when you said 

in a letter to 

offering the plug in the 

ServPro? 

we did, yes. 

FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

Mr. Cox, can you explain 

document since this 

e incidents in question? 

Document the efforts that UOC 

damage. 

PRICE: 

that happened after 

that's not what he's 

introduce 

you offer 

flood. 

MR. COX: 

it, then. 

EXAMINER 

That might be true for 

September 17th^ ^^t 

alleging. 

Okay. 

I'll wi 

PRICE: 

to Mr. Bennett the 

I don't need to 

thdraw the exhibit. 

Mr, Bischoff, when did 

drain plug? 

THE WITNESS: Right after the first 
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September 

put the o 

EXAMINER PRICE: Somet 

9th, 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

EXAMINER PRICE: When 

ther device on? 

THE WITNESS: In that 

don't have a date on it, it was ju 

discussion. 

gth. 

Q. 

September 

you have 

EXAMINER PRICE: But a 

THE WITNESS: Yes, 

EXAMINER PRICE: Thank 

(By Mr, Cox) As of Sep 

7th^ 2004, and September 

an opinion whether or not 

Subdivision wastewater treatment p 

adequate 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

service? 

It was. 

And what's the basis o 

Well, we have to turn 

reports each month, and other than 

having a 

operating 

glitch in the report, the 

, I mean, we run tests on 

55 

ime after 

did you offer to 

time frame. I 

St in part of the 

fter September 

you. 

tember 9^^ or 

18th, 2004, do 

the Rolling Hills 

lant was providing 

f your opinion? 

in these kind of 

occasionally 

plant was 

the plant, take 

samples and have it tested and turn a copy of the 
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1 test results in to EPA. 

2 Q. Has Mr. Bennett complained about sewage 

3 in his basement since September IS^h^ 2004? 

4 A. Not to us. 

5 Q. H a s a n y b o d y e l s e i n t h e s y s t e m 

6 complained - -

7 A. No. 

8 Q. --about sewage intheir basement since 

9 September IS^h^ 2004? 

10 A. No. 

11 MR. COX: I don't have any other 

12 questions. 

13 EXAMINER PRICE: Mr. Bennett, 

14 cross-examination? 

15 - - _ 

16 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

17 By Mr. Bennett: 

18 Q. On the 9th yQu stated their manholes 

19 were still underwater. 

20 A. We had some that were, not all of them. 

21 Q. Okay. And my basement being the lowest 

22 elevation there, I would have still had water in my 

2 3 basement on the 9th, And after your workers showed 

24 up on the 8th ^ f September, they showed up between 
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7:30 and 7:45 and went through the manholes, my water 

in my basement started going down. I didn't have the 

sewage and the water in the basement on the 9th, 

It went down on the Sth between 9 and 10 o'clock to 

11 o'clock that night it drained down, and then we 

had to start cleaning ourselves. 

EXAMINER PRICE: Mr. Bennett, you need 

to -- you're making a statement, you need to ask him 

a question. 

Q, Well, I'm asking you the question, you 

stated that there was still manholes underwater. 

A. And the question is? 

Q. About the manholes being underwater on 

the 9th when you went out --

A. Well, the manhole that's down -- sits 

below your house was not underwater. It's the one 

that relieves -- is the relief for basically your 

basement. So the level of water in the sewer system 

had dropped enough to drain your basement, but that 

did not clear all the manholes. And the pumps were 

still -- both pumps were still pumping. And the area 

around the plant was still underwater. 

Q. On the 9th. 

A. Yes. 
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1 Q. Okay, And you also stated we were told 

2 about a device we could have installed outside our 

3 home? 

4 A, Yes. 

5 MR. BENNETT: We were not told of any 

6 device. 

7 THE WITNESS: Mr. Bennett, I told you 

8 that over the phone. 

9 EXAMINER PRICE: Let's be clear here. 

10 You can ask him questions. After he's done, I'll let 

11 you present any testimony regarding his testimony 

12 after that. 

13 MR. BENNETT: Okay, 

14 Q. I did ask you the question that we were 

15 told about a device that could be installed outside 

16 the home. 

17 A. I told you over the phone that I would 

18 install that for you. You told me that you weren't 

19 interested in it because it would cause problems for 

20 the neighbors. 

21 MR. BENNETT: I'm done. 

22 EXAMINER PRICE: Thank you, 

23 Mr. Cox, redirect? 

24 MR. COX: No redirect. 
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EXAMINATION 

By Examiner Price: 

Q. 

testimony 

from the 

A. 

Q. 

that your 

A. 

5 inches 

Mr. Bischoff, what is the -- your 

is that the excessive amount of water was 

-- excessive rain caused the water. 

Yes. 

What is the maximum amount of rainfall 

system can deal with? 

Well, in January of 2005 that area got 

of rain and it didn't flood in his basement. 

so from that my conclusion is we can handle 5 inches 

of rain. 

Q. 

rain you 

A. 

that when 

Have you done any studies as to how much 

can handle? 

No, not really, other than just the sense 

you have both of your pumps kicking on and 

not shutting off in the station and you're starting 

to get water around the plant, you're beginning to 

get to th 

Q. 

e point where you have a potential problem. 

But you can't actually, beyond past 

experience you can't say there's a maximum design 

capacity 

A. 

question 

for an amount of rain that that can handle. 

Well, I guess I would answer that 

a little differently. I can tell you -- I 
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capacity of that system regar 

comes from, based on certain 

sanitary 

of that g 

that the 

water in 

starting 

would --

because 5 

intervals 

chance of 

how the s 
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can tell you the design 

dless of where the water 

situations, because the 

sewer's on a grade and in Rolling Hills some 

rade's pretty steep. 

So you can do the calculation that shows 

system will handle up to a certain amount of 

the system until you 

to back up. 

Now, there's some 

I mean, I could give 

inches of rain can 

So it would be --

getting a sense of 

have the first manhole 

indeterminants that 

you a range, simply 

come at certain 

you stand a better 

where you are if you see 

ystem's reacting rather than trying to do a 

study because each, you know. 

rain the 

Q. 

Operator 

same way every time. 

I understand. 

God doesn't make it 

Your counsel previously marked Utility 

Exhibit 3, it's the 

No, 00-1514-ST-AIR, 

A, 

Q. 

A. 

Right, 

Staff Report from case 

Do you have a copy of that? 

I don't. 
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or the 
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EXAMINER PRICE: Mr. Cox, can you provide 

of that to the witness? 

A. 

copy 

Yeah, they currently --

MR, COX: I can give him my personal 

that Mr, Bennett took. 

EXAMINER PRICE: I'm sure he can — I 

copy 

'm 

sure Mr. Bischoff will give you your personal copy 

back in due 

Q. 

course. 

According to Staff Report on page 19, 

says the sewage treatment plants can handle up to 

100,000 gallons per day — 

me how 

on the 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

many 

7th, 

September? 

A. 

Yes. 

-- do you see that? Is that correct? 

Yes, That's its design capacity. 

That's the design capacity. Can you 

it 

tell 

gallons were received on a per-day basis 

8th, and I guess 19th [sic] of 

Once again, I didn't bring it with me 

but from the meters on the pumps I could do that. 

didn't 

record, 

bring that with me. 

Q. 

A. 

So you don't know. 

I don't know right now. We have the 

I just don't have it with me. 

/ 

I 
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Q, So you don't know -- I guess my question 

is: Are you able to tell the Commission today 

whether or not the amount of -- whether or not the 

rain caused you to exceed that 100,000-gallons per 

day design capacity? 

A. Yes. I can tell you that. It did. 

Q. It did? 

A. Your hundred thousand gallon capacity is 

handled by a single pump. It will handle that 

capacity with one pump. You got two pumps running 

and it will handle that on an off-and-on basis. In 

other words, it will run for a while and then it will 

shut down, then it will run for a while and then it 

will shut down. You've got two pumps running 

full-time, 24 hours a day, you're pumping way over a 

hundred thousand gallons. 

Q. Now, at page 21 of the same Staff Report 

it indicates plant records indicate flow spikes as 

high as 270-gallons per day. Is that what you're 

talking about when both pumps are running 24 hours? 

Is that a situation where both pumps would be 

running? 

A. Well, both pumps would be running to get 

270,000-gallons a day. If you keep the pumps running 
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ours a day, they're going to pump more than that. 

because the 270 -- if you stop and think for a 

minute, if one pump will run a hundred thousand 

gall 

the 

cycl 

hund 

they 

they 

you 

What 

leve 

two 

off. 

that 

rain 

talk 

deal 

you' 

ons sporadically, by running sporadically through 

day, two pumps will run 270 basically by the same 

e. You're looking at 100, your rates are a 

red to 135 for each one. 

These pumps weren't run sporadically. 

were running full-time 24 hours a day, so 

're pumping well over the 270. Because the 270 

would pump while the pump's kicking on and off. 

happens is your first pump kicks on and when the 

1 gets so high, the second pump kicks in. The 

of them pump it down, and then they both kick 

Then the first pump kicks on. So you go on 

cycle, you'll get the 270 covered. 

And this was before you had the kind of 

that we're talking about. So the 270 they're 

ing about came from the smaller storm. We're 

ing with both pumps never stopped running, so 

re dealing with a much higher volume. 

Q. Okay. Mr. Bennett testified at some 

point previously, previous to the events in question. 

that sewage had backed into the basement of his 
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resi 

resi 

inci 

I'm 

that 

what 

dence 

dence 

dent? 

A. 

r although when 

at that point. 

I'm not sure 

not sure. Ten years 

caused a backup, I'm 

he's 

Q. 

Operators 

you 

bank 

foil 

pend 

okay 

your 

talking about. 

Mrs. Bennett 

Corporation may 

explain whether you d 

ruptcy recently? 

A. 

ow th. 

Q. 

ing . 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

• 

Q. 

f aci. 

Operators 

We did file b 

cough with it, b 

You did file 

Right. 

I checked, it was not his 

Are you familiar with th 

when he was talking about 

ago we had a grease probl 

not sure whether that's 

indicated that Utility 

have filed bankruptcy. 

id or did not file 

ankruptcy. We did not 

ut we did file it. 

it, but it's no longer 

It was withdrawn? 

Yes. I guess 

MR. COX: Yea 

-- I guess it's been --

h, it's dismissed. 

EXAMINER PRICE: It's been dismissed. 

Has the Staff 

Lity since this 

Corporation Exh 

performed an inspection 

Staff report that's Utili 

ibit 3? 

64 

at 

• 

em 

Can 

of 

ty 
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A. The EPA and your fe 

periodically. I don't know tha 

Q. 

more curre 

the 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

incide 

A. 

excused. 

I guess what I'm as 

nt document than this 

No. 

-- from 2001? No, 

No, 

Okay. And that was 

nts; is that correct? 

Yes. 

EXAMINER PRICE: Th 

(Witness excused.) 

EXAMINER PRICE: Mr 

How both stop by 

t they would --

Icing is, is there 

Staff Report --

65 

a 

three years before 

ank you. Okay, you're 

. Bennett, now is 

time, if you have rebuttal testimony to anything 

Mr. 

ask 

the 

is 

bei 

Bischo 

you to 

topics 

ff has testified to. The only thing I' 

do is try to constrain your testimony 

that he addressed in 

rebuttal. 

Mr. Bennett, please 

the 

that 

11 

to 

testimony since this 

proceed. 

BRADLEY J. BENNETT, SR. 

ng previously duly sworn, as 

testified and was examined as f 

prescribed by law, 

D H O W S : 
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that cou 

not told 

outside 

sent out 

receive 

had that 

I had as 

workers 

to the h 

it. No, 

home, 

install 

legal to 

force th 

DIRECT 

THE WITNESS: 

66 

TESTIMONY 

He's talking about a device 

Id be installed outside the home. We were 

nothing about a 

our home. 

And the drain 

device being installed 

plug that he said that was 

prior to the second sewage backup we did not 

until October 4th 

plug, it wouldn' 

of that year. And had we 

t have been in place because 

ked when they brought it, he had one of his 

-- and I believe 

ouse, and I asked 

it was Russ -- bring it down 

him if they would install 

they would not install this plug into my 

So I'm thinking well, if they won't 

the plug into my 

install a drain 

is onto somebody 

that^s what would happen. 

sewage onto someone else. 

in that 

in their 

have --

home, is it even -- is it 

plug into your house and 

else? Because I feel that 

I would be forcing the raw 

The next lowest basement 

neighborhood would have received the sewage 

home. 

And Byesville 

there's different 

and Jackson Township 

-- there's different sewage 
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1 treatment plants. Byesville has their own, Jackson 

2 Township has its own, which is Mr. Bischoff's. And 

3 basically that's all I have to say about it. 

4 EXAMINER PRICE: Mr, Cox, cross? 

5 MR. COX: Just one minute. 

6 - - -

7 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

8 By Mr. Cox: 

9 Q, You were offered a plug and it wasn't 

10 installed; is that right? 

11 A, No, it wasn't installed- They wouldn't 

12 install it. And the plug they offered me was too big 

13 to be installed in my drain anyhow, 

14 Q. Yet your house, even after October 2004, 

15 it didn't flood, did it? 

16 A, No, 

17 Q. No? 

18 (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION,) 

19 Q. Handing you what's been identified as UOC 

20 Exhibit 7, this is a monthly operating report from 

21 January 2005; is that correct? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. Now, I w a n t y o u t o l o o k a t t h e amount of 

24 precipitation that was recorded at the wastewater 
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treatment 

6th. Do 

A. 

Q. 

January 3 

A. 

Q. 

recorded 

A, 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

January 3 

didr 

was 

1 was 

A. 

Q. 

I't fl 

A. 

Q. 

able 

A. 

Q. 

plant for January 

you see that? 

rd 

on 

rd 
1 

Yes. 

How many inches 

recorded at the 

3rd^ 4th , 5th^ and 

was there on 

plant? 

It says -- there's just 

How many inches 

January 4th? 

1.5. 

And how much on 

3. 

And how much on 

2,3. 

of preci 

January 

January 

And how much d o e s that t 

4th^ 5th^ and € 

8 inches, almost 

th-p 

a 2 there. 

pitation was 

5th7 

6th? 

otal, from 

9 inches of water. 

In four days. And yet your basement 

ood, did it? 

to 

No, it didn't fl 

So over the spar 

handle at least 

ood. 

of four 

8.8 inch 

According to this report 

Yeah. But in Se 

hit with, in one day, 6 

ptember 

inches. 

days the syst 

es, right? 

, yes. 

68 

em 

2004 the system 

right? 
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A. 

right now 

copies? 

copies. 

reporter 

record. 

. 

to 

If 

make an ext 

documents 

document. 

Exhibit 1 

I d 

MRS 

MR. 

MRS 

MR. 

MRS 

MR. 

mar 

Mr, 

on't have that paper 

. BENNETT: Are you 

COX: These are the 

. BENNETT: Oh. We 

COX: Right. 

. BENNETT: Are you 

COX: This is what 

k a s an exhibit for 

69 

in front of me 

sure those are our 

court reporter's 

have the original. 

positive on that? 

I gave the court 

admission into the 

Bennett wants an extra copy, I can 

ra copy for him. 

EXAMINER PRICE: Let's 

are. 

• 

I think UOC 

don't you 

Operators 

reporter 

g 

-

MR. 

I think he already 

COX: I'm trying tc 

EXAMINER PRICE: Okay. 

Exh 

ive 

see what the 

has a copy of this 

give him UOC 

Why don't you --

ibit No. 1 is also in UOC 5, so why 

-- do you have a copy of Utility 

- first of all, let's give the court 

all of 

with these thin 

her documents so th 

gs not in the recorc 

at we don't end up 

when this goes up 
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to the Su 

does Mr, 

Report on 

first. 

expert's 

monthly o 

operating 

70 

preme Court. 

Do you have a copy of -- Mrs. Bennett, 

Bennett have a copy of UOC Exhibit 5 that's 

the Backup Into --

MRS. BENNETT: Make sure you find it 

MR. COX: I'm sorry, Mr. Price, in the 

report it includes only the September 2004 

perating report, UOC Exhibit 7 is a monthly 

report from January 2005. 

EXAMINER PRICE: No; I understand, I 

thought you were going to ask him a question about 

September 

correct, 

Q. 

17th^ you 

A. 

2004. 

MR. COX: I beg your pardon; you're 

(By Mr, Cox) If you look at September 

received 6 inches of rain at once. 

According to this report, yes, that's 

what it says. 

Q. 

inches of 

A. 

Q. 

And on September 8th they received 5 

rain at once. 

Yes, according to the report. 

So isn't it true that the amount of rain 

it receives in a short-term event impacts the ability 
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of the 

if I 'm 

sys 

all 

just made 

plant -

answer 

__ 

his 

tem to receive that 

71 

water? 

THE WITNESS: I don't 

owed to do this or 

the statement that 

EXAMINER PRICE: 

question. To the 

you can, answer his question. 

your quest 

system 

Q. 

THE WITNESS: Oka 

ion again? 

Isn't it true tha 

receives and the time 

rain determines whether the s 

receiving 

A, 

Q. 

8.8 inches 

it apparen 

on one day 

A. 

Q. 

the rainfall? 

No, I don't think 

Even though the s 

of rain over four 

tly was not able tc 

in September 2004, 

That's what it sa 

So you don't knov̂  

not, 

that 

know how I can --

but Mr. Bischoff 

water treatment 

I think you need to 

best 

y, go 

t the 

perio 

ystem 

. so. 

ystem 

days 

of your ability, if 

f 

ahead. What was 

amount of rain the 

d it receives that 

is capable of 

was able to handle 

in January of 2005, 

handle 6 inches of rain 

Isn 

ys. 

one 

what the capacity of the system is 

handle a 6 

A. 

-inch storm event. 

The only thing I 

't that true? 

way or the other 

and whether it can 

do you? 

know is what the report 
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says. 

Q. 

and that's 

basement --

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

alleging fl 

72 

And it says 6 inches of rain on one day, 

the day you alleged the flooding in your 

The 17th. 

-- correct? 

And on the 8th j _ ^ says 5 inches. 

I'll ask my question again. You're 

coding occurred in your basement on 

September ISth^ correct? 

A. 

Q. 

right? 

A. 

I'm alleging raw sewage in my basement. 

Because the system was overcapacity. 

I don't know if the system was 

overcapicitated. 

Q. So you don't know what caused sewage in 

your basement, do you? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

the system, 

Q. 

A, 

Yeah; the drains backed up into my home. 

What caused the drains to back up? 

I don't know if they had a malfunction at 

what happened. I have no idea. 

Okay. So you don't know, do you? 

No. 

MR. COX: I don't have anything further. 
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be the 

EXAMINER PRICE 

73 

: Okay. Again, this would 

point where your counsel normally would do 

redirect. Do you have anything to say that's related 

to the questions that Mr. 

questions Mr. Cox just ask 

time to 

system 

Mr. Bis 

handlin 

he test 

5-plus 

got was 

report. 

he aske 

excused 

say it. 

REDIRECT 

THE WITNESS: 

received 5 inches o 

choff testify that 

g 5 inches of rain. 

ified, he said that 

inches of rain. On 

5 inches of rain. 

EXAMINER PRICE 

MR. BENNETT: 

d, yes. 

EXAMINER PRICE 

MR. COX: Noth 

EXAMINER PRICE 

-

Cox and only related to the 

ed you? Now would be the 

TESTIMONY 

Okay, On the 8th ^he 

f rain, and I heard 

the system was capable of 

When he testified -- when 

it was capable of handling 

the 8th that's what we 

Well, according to this 

: That's all you have? 

Yeah. That was a question 

: Mr. Cox? 

ing further. 

: Thank you, you're 

(Witness excused.) 
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EXAMINER 

you surrebuttal at th 

another 

witness 

respond 

give you 

keep it 

proceed. 

By Mr, C 

Q 

provide 

A 

Q 

what the 

5 inches 

A 

witness. 

MR. COX: 

I have. 

EXAMINER 

to the rebutt 

MR, COX: 

EXAMINER 

PRICE: Mr. Cox, I 

is point if you'd 1 

Mr. Bischoff is th 

PRICE: And you do 

al testimony? 

Okay, we'll — 

PRICE: It's up to 

the opportunity to do surrebutt 

restrained to 

MR. COX: 

EXAMINER 

74 

will allow 

ike to put on 

e only 

not want to 

you. I'll 

al. Let's 

the rebuttal testimony. 

We will. 

PRICE: Thank you. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

ox: 

Mr. Bisch 

some rebuttal 

Yes. 

off, you heard Mr. 

, correct? 

And he provided some rebutta 

system was capable of handling. 

or 6 inches 

Well, I'd 

or --

like to clear that 

Please 

Bennett 

1 in terms of 

whether it's 

up because I 
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think, or 

was the 1 

flooding. 

at least wha 

imit because 

t I was trying to 

75 

say was that 

that's when it started 

So the ability of the system 

sudden quick storm wou 

that's wh 

I was try 

Q. 

the flood 

A. 

4-1/2 or 

en it starts 

ing to say. 

So anythin 

ing in his --

Well, 5 or 

above, we jus 

once again, the Januar 

trying to 

out over 

of inches 

handle it 

doing an 

say before, 

a long period 

, but when yo 

• 

So there's 

analysis that 

the system will handle 

could be 

a thousan 

Q. 

too much 

to handle 

A. 

thrown at it. 

d options. 

Isn't this 

Id be below the 5 

having a problem. 

to handle a 

inches. 

That's what 

g above 5 inches would cause 

above. Well, it 

t, we don't -- we 

y — and this is vv 

that if you spread 

of time, you can 

u get it suddenly, 

no way of sitting 

's going to tell y 

under all the con 

could be 

haven't had, 

hat I was 

the water 

handle a lot 

you can't 

down and 

ôu how much 

ditions that 

I mean, you'd have to look at 

merely an example of there was 

rain that entered the system for the system 

it? 

When the rain enters -- too much rain 
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76 

enters it too quickly, it can't handle it. 

Q. 

going to be 

A, 

Q. 

capacity --

A, 

Q. 

that true? 

A, 

is based on 

would be di 

little comp 

rate of the 

water going 

your water' 

it, then yo 

Q. 

No matter what you design, there's always 

a point, isn't there --

Right. 

-- where the system's going reach 

Right. 

-- and there will be overcapacity; isn't 

Every system has a limit, and that limit 

a particular storm. A different storm 

fferent, because it's an -- it does get a 

licated, and I apologize, but it's the 

water coming in versus the rate of the 

out, and that's really what tells you if 

s coming in faster than you can get rid of 

u've exceeded the limit of the system. 

And if you've exceeded the limit of the 

system, does that have anything whatsoever to do with 

whether the 

properly? 

A, 

best it can 

start not f 

system is functioning and operating 

The treatment plant will try to treat as 

, but once you hit the limit, then things 

anctioning the way they should because 
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handling 

Q. 

A. 

questions 

designate 

77 

t handle the flow and the storm sewer can't 

so it doesn't flow like it would if it was 

it. 

Do you have anything further to say? 

No. 

MR. COX: I don't have any further 

, Mr. Price. 

EXAMINER PRICE: Mr. Bennett, cross? 

MR. BENNETT: On what he just said? 

EXAMINER PRICE: On what he just said. 

MRS. BENNETT: Am I permitted to --

EXAMINER PRICE: No. Once you've 

d a person, it's unfair to have 

double-teaming. 

tag team. 

would be 

well. 

MRS. BENNETT: Well, I'm not trying to 

okay? I'm not. 

EXAMINER PRICE: I understand. That 

true if Mr. Cox had brought an associate as 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

By Mr. Bennett: 

Q. 

comes out 

Are you stating that all the water that 

of the hills into that system goes directly 
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to th 

know. 

' will 

e system d 

A, 

Q. 

admit 

No. 

Oka 

MR. 

own through the storm 

I didn't say that. 

y-

BENNETT: That's all 

sewers? 

I wanted to 

EXAMINER PRICE: Okay. Thank you. 

Mr. 

that 

rebuttal testim 

privi 

you. 

lege. 

Can 

not the pi 

Bischoff, I have one 

I'm going outside of 

ony, but that's pretty 

you explain to me the 

78 

question, and I 

the scope of the 

' much my 

device that 

ug, but the other device that you 

discussed earlier that --

name. 

don't 

THE WITNESS: It's a — 

EXAMINER PRICE: Can you 

first of 

THE 

remember 

all? 

WITNESS: No, I can't 

what it's called. 

EXAMINER PRICE: Okay. 

THE 

device, you dig 

this 

line 

out o 

unit sits 

comes 

f the 

into 

unit 

identify it 

, because I 

WITNESS: But it's basically a 

a hole where the service line is 

there across the service line, so 

the unit and goes out 

When the main line 

, you know, 

side starts 

by 

and 

the 

goes 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

79 

having water come into the service line, it fills up 

this 

that 

unti 

and 

chamber which has just basically a knife gate 

slides up and blocks the house side of the line 

1 the main side goes down, then this drops down 

it works again. 

I used to have a picture of it, and I --

we recently moved, I'm not sure I hung onto it, but I 

can 

to C 

get more information on it. I mean, I've talked 

olumbus about it because I wanted to see what 

their experience was with it before I offered it to 

Mr. 

this 

Bennett. 

EXAMINER PRICE: And it's your testimony 

would not adversely affect any other residences 

in the subdivision. 

THE WITNESS: No. 

EXAMINER PRICE: Okay. Thank you, you're 

excused. 

(Witness excused.) 

EXAMINER PRICE: Thank you all for your 

testimony. We will have -- as I said earlier when we 

were 

say. 

brie 

off the record, let's do posthearing briefs by, 

June 9th^ and we will dispense with reply 

fs. 

Again, Mr. Bennett, the posthearing brief 
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is not as formal --

you should be, you k 

your case 

provided 

writing. 

exhibits, 

and then 

case numb 

and why yo 

inadequate 

of course. 

any of the 

mail it to 

er on it an 

we'll consider that 

that in making their 

evidence. 

proceed. 

Exhibit 1 

operating 

MR, COX: 

EXAMINER 

MR. COX: 

, UOC No. 1 

don't feel that 

now, it's si 

u think that 

service, and 

mply 

the 

it 

and reference an 

testimony that 

the Docketin 

d that will 

80 

it's something 

a statement of 

company has 

should be in 

y of the 

took place today. 

g division with the 

get docketed and 

-- the Commission will consider 

decision. 

I need to 

PRICE: Oh, 

Exhibits 1 

is a copy o 

report from September 

Mr, Bennett testify 

testify to that. 

through a 

any objec 

EXAMINER 

11 of them. 

MR. COX: 

EXAMINER 

tions to th 

to that, we 

PRICE: You 

Okay. 

PRICE: Mr. 

ese exhibits 

move 

goo 

my exhibits into 

d point. Please 

through 7, I believe 

f th 

2004 

had 

don 

e monthly 

, we had 

Mr- Bischoff 

't need to go 

Bennett, do you have 
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I'll ask 

MR. BENNETT: No. 

EXAMINER PRICE: 

81 

I have one question, and 

you to respond to my question real fast and 

that is the relevance of the 

it was th 

is, that' 

evidence 

Excellent 

will all 

that. 

yes , 

about the 

out, 

was in th 

ree years preceding. 

MR. COX: 

Staff Report given that 

Shows what the design capacity 

s the main thing in 

I see of what the de 

EXAMINER 

. 

PRICE: 

All Exhibits, UOC 

be admitted. 

there. That's the only 

sign capacity is. 

Okay. Great. 

1 through 5 and UOC 7 

(EXHIBITS ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.) 

MR, COX: 

EXAMINER 

MR. COX: 

plug and --

EXAMINER 

MR. COX: 

EXAMINER 

And UOC 

PRICE: 

Even t^ 

-

PRICE: 

Okay. 

PRICE: 

, 6, we'll be withdrawing 

You withdrew that one, 

LOugh we questioned him 

Let's just keep UOC 6 

I think anything that 

ere was already discussed in testimony 
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anyways, 

Posthearing briefs will be due 

June 9th^ 2007, and once we receive those, this 

case will be submitted on the record to the 

Commission. Thank you all. 

MR. BENNETT: Thank you. 

MR. COX: Thank you. 

(Thereupon, the hearing concluded at 

11:29 a,m,) 
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3 7 : 1 4 , 1 8 39 :21 
51 :20 5 7 : 1 , 4 
57:14 

were 5 : 22 8:4 
3 2 : 6 3 5 : 2 0 , 2 1 
35 :23 36:4 
3 7 : 6 , 8 4 9 : 2 1 
5 0 : 1 6 , 2 4 5 3 : 1 1 
5 6 : 1 9 , 2 0 57 :20 
5 7 : 2 1 5 8 : 1 , 5 
58:14 61 :16 
6 3 : 9 6 6 : 3 67 :9 
70 :12 7 9 : 2 1 

w e r e n ' t 3 8 :3 
58 :18 63 :8 

w e ' 1 1 5 : 2 3 34 :7 
3 5 : 1 1 49 :13 
74 :8 8 0 : 9 
81:14 

W 6 ' r e 6 : 1 6 8 :23 
9 : 2 , 3 30 :12 
6 3 : 1 8 , 1 9 

w e ' v e 3 8 : 1 0 46:4 
46 :10 

w h a t s o e v e r 7 6:19 
w h i l e 6 2 : 1 2 , 13 

6 3 : 1 1 
whoo 37 :16 
w i f e 18 : 3 ,20 
w i f e ' s 1 8 : 4 , 1 4 
windows 3 2 : 1 7 , 1 8 
w i t h d r a w 19 :23 

54 :20 
w i t h d r a w i n g 

81:14 
w i t h d r a w n 64:17 
w i t h d r e w 81 :16 
w i t n e s s 5 : 5 , 8 , 1 1 

5:17 6:6 7 :5 
8 : 9 , 1 4 , 1 6 , 2 0 
8 :23 9:8 32:14 
3 3 : 2 , 1 5 , 1 6 
3 4 : 6 , 9 , 1 2 , 1 6 
3 4 : 2 3 3 5 : 3 , 1 1 
35:14 3 9 : 2 , 6 
3 9 : 1 2 , 1 6 4 0 : 1 
rt/> -^ r~ f\ "if— t ^ 

4 0 : 3 , 5 , 9 , 1 5 , 1 6 
A -̂  ^^ r f̂  A jt "^ 4 1 : 2 , 5 , 8 44 :2 
44 :13 4 6 : 9 

47 :13 48 :16 
5 0 : 5 , 8 52:24 
5 3 : 2 , 2 0 , 2 3 
54 :23 5 5 : 3 , 6 
5 5 : 1 1 58 :7 
61 :2 65 :13 
66 :2 7 1 : 2 , 9 
7 3 : 9 , 2 4 7 4 : 3 , 5 
7 8 : 1 4 , 1 7 , 2 0 
7 9 : 1 5 , 1 8 

w i t n e s s e s 3 :3 
33 :18 34 :6 

w o r d 3 8 : 2 3 3 9 : 3 
3 9 : 9 , 1 1 , 1 2 , 1 7 
39 :19 

words 62 :12 
work 36 : 4 3 9 : 1 1 

4 1 : 1 9 , 2 4 42 :23 
43 :2 

worked 10:24 
11 :6 

w o r k e r s 5 6 : 2 3 
6 6 : 1 1 

works 7 9 : 5 
w o u l d n ' t 2 7 : 1 7 

6 6 : 9 6 7 : 1 1 
w r i t e 36 :18 
w r i t e s 3 6 : 2 0 
w r i t i n g 8 0 : 5 
w r o t e 36 : 21 

Y 

y e a h 10: 9 , 1 0 , 1 3 
1 1 : 1 9 , 2 3 1 3 : 1 
1 7 : 1 1 2 8 : 1 
30 :7 4 2 : 5 
4 8 : 2 1 5 2 : 3 
5 4 : 9 61 :3 
64 :19 68 :23 
72 :18 73 :18 

y e a r 2 9 : 2 3 36 :19 
66 :8 

y e a r s 10:4 3 0 : 1 1 
33 :8 36 :19 
4 2 : 1 8 , 2 2 4 3 : 1 
6 4 : 5 65 :8 8 1 : 5 

Z 

z i p 34 :14 

$ 
$ 4 , 0 0 0 5 2 : 1 4 

0 

00-1514-ST-AIR 
6 0 : 2 1 

0 4 1 9 * 1 8 3 2 - 2 1 
05 18 -15 19-16 

19 :19 
05-726-WS-CSS 

1:6 4 :6 

1 

1 3 : 1 7 , 1 9 6 : 2 , 5 
6 : 1 2 , 1 6 14 :22 
14 :23 15 :2 
3 1 * 1 7 4 8 * 1 3 
J J . . J . ' l O . J - J 

6 9 : 1 8 , 2 0 80 :15 
8 0 * 1 f i 1 6 8 1 - 1 1 

1. 5 68 : 9 
1 / 0 5 3 : 2 4 
1 0 3 2 : 1 5 57 :4 
1 0 : 0 0 1 : 1 4 
100 63 • 6 ^ V V v ^ • \ J 

100 ,000 6 1 : 1 1 
1 0 0 , 0 0 0 - g a l l o n s 

62: 4 
1 0 1 1*21 ? • 2 

4 * 1 S 5 * 1 1 1 0 - 3 
* 7 B _ L < ^ « ^ B J _ J _ J . V / B > - ^ 

13:4 26 :4 
34 :13 

1 1 3 9 : 1 4 5 7 : 5 
1 1 - G 1 : 1 4 
1 1 • 2<5 8 ? • 9 
X X > ^ 7 <J C. • J 

135 63:7 
1 5 3 : 1 9 
1 7 3 : 2 0 
1 7 t h 7 : 8 12 :10 

1 3 : 9 , 1 6 14 :12 
1 6 : 1 1 19 :12 
21 :12 2 5 : 5 
47 :8 4 8 : 1 50 :2 
54 :17 70 :17 
7 2 : 5 

1 8 t h 4 9 : 5 , 2 4 
55:14 5 6 : 3 , 9 
72 :10 

180 1:13 
1 8 5 1 : 2 1 
1 9 2 4 : 1 1 6 1 : 9 

83:10 
1 9 t h 61 :17 
1 9 7 1 4 2 : 2 1 
1 9 7 8 4 5 : 1 8 , 2 1 

2 

2 3 : 2 0 8:10 
1 4 : 1 8 , 2 0 1 6 : 3 
1 7 : 1 6 , 2 0 5 0 : 1 
68 :6 

2 . 3 68 :13 
2 0 1 0 - 4 3 0 - 1 1 

33 :8 
2001 24 :7 25 :24 

6 5 : 6 
2004 1 4 : 1 15 :24 

2 0 : 1 , 2 , 1 6 2 1 : 9 
2 5 : 6 29:24 
4 7 : 8 , 8 49 :20 
5 5 - 1 4 14 5 6 - 3 

5 6 : 9 67:14 
6 8 : 2 3 7 0 : 8 , 1 3 
7 1 : 1 9 80 :17 

2 0 0 5 2 0 : 2 , 1 6 
5 9 : 9 6 7 : 2 1 
70 :10 71:17 

2 0 0 7 1 : 1 5 4 :2 
8 2 : 3 83:4 

2 0 1 1 8 3 : 1 0 
2 1 2 5 : 8 28 :9 

3 0 : 2 1 62:17 
2 2 3 - 9 4 8 1 1 : 2 2 
224-5724 1:23 
224-9481 1:22 
2 3 3 : 2 1 
2 4 2 7 : 1 1 62 :15 

62:20 6 3 : 1 , 9 
2 5 t h 2 4 : 7 
2 6 t h 4 5 : 1 8 
2 7 t h 5 : 2 1 18 :15 

19:15 
270 6 3 : 2 , 5 , 1 0 , 1 0 

6 3 : 1 6 , 1 8 
2 7 0 , 0 0 0 - g a l l o n s 

62:24 
2 7 0 - g a l l o n s 

62 :19 

3 

3 1 : 1 5 3 :21 4 :2 
2 3 : 1 9 , 2 2 30:22 
60:20 64:24 
68 :11 83 :4 

3 r d 6 8 : l , 5 , 1 5 
30 2 2 : 2 1 , 2 3 
3 0 - y e a r - o l d 

24 :19 
32 3 :5 
3 3 3 : 6 
34 3 :7 
3 5 4 3 : 1 
3 6 5 3 : 1 2 

4 

4 3 : 2 2 44:24 
45:4 

4 t h 2 1 : 9 66 :8 
6 8 : 1 , 8 , 1 5 

4 - 1 / 2 75 :10 
41 3 :9 
4 3 0 6 5 4 1 : 1 0 
43215 2 :6 
4 3 2 1 5 - 5 2 0 1 1 : 2 2 
43723 2 : 3 
45 3:22 
4500 15 :13 
4 9 3 : 2 3 
4 9 0 1 : 1 - 1 5 - 1 1 ( . . . 

2 5 : 1 9 

5 

5 3 : 2 3 16 :5 49 :8 
4 9 : 9 , 1 3 , 1 5 
5 0 : 1 5 9 : 1 0 , 1 1 

60:12 69:20 
7 0 : 3 , 2 0 72 :7 
7 3 : 1 0 , 1 2 , 1 5 
7 4 : 2 3 7 5 : 4 , 7 , 9 
8 1 : 1 1 

S t h 6 8 : 1 , 1 0 , 1 5 
5 - p l u s 73:14 
500 2 :6 
56 3 :9 

6 

6 3 : 1 7 , 1 7 16:12 
50 :2 51 :2 5 3 : 6 
5 3 : 6 68:24 
70:17 71:18 
72 :2 74 :23 
8 1 : 1 4 , 2 0 

6 t h 6 8 : 2 , 1 2 , 1 5 
6 - i n c h 7 1 : 23 
614 1 :22 ,23 
6 6 3 : 1 1 
6 7 3 : 1 1 , 2 4 

7 

7 3 : 4 , 2 4 51 :3 
67:20 7 0 : 9 
80 :15 8 1 : 1 1 

7 t h l 4 : 6 16:2 
2 5 : 5 47:24 
49:24 5 0 : 1 
55:14 61:17 

7 : 3 0 5 7 : 1 
7 : 4 5 5 7 : 1 
7 1 4 2 : 2 0 
7 3 3 : 1 2 
7 4 3 : 1 3 
7 7 3 : 1 4 50:17 
7 8 4 6 : 1 7 

8 

8 8 : 1 4 , 1 5 53 :6 
68 :16 

8 t h 7 : 6 12 :9 
1 3 : 9 , 1 5 14 :9 
1 6 : 6 , 8 19 :11 
2 5 : 5 4 7 : 8 , 2 4 
49:24 5 0 : 1 
56:24 57:4 
61:17 70:20 
72:7 7 3 : 9 , 1 4 

8 . 8 6 8 : 2 1 71:17 
800 1:22 
8 1 3 : 1 9 , 2 0 , 2 1 , 2 2 

3 : 2 3 , 2 4 

9 

9 3 :5 57 :4 68 :16 
9 t h 50 :15 55 :2 

5 5 : 1 0 , 1 3 56:18 
5 6 : 2 3 5 7 : 3 , 1 4 
5 7 : 2 3 79:22 

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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8 2 : 3 
9/04 3 :19 
9 8 3 2 : 1 5 , 2 0 
9976 41 :9 

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



EXHIBITS 



Case Number O ^ - ^ Q t .^ \d S - C < : K 

The following exhibit(s) were prefiled and can be located with the 
pleadings: 

Exhibits Date Filed 

UOC EXHIBITS 

2 - Formal Complaint Form ^ 7 3/ /DX 

3 - Staff Report of Investigation 

S/3//1 
il9<SJoi 



, iLY REPORT FORM 4500 

Name. Address City, County, ZIP : 
utility Operators Corporation 
South of intersection of Jackson Twp. Rds. •434 & 
435 
Byesville OK 43723 

Station Code ; Reported Date (Month Year): Application 
501 • January 2005 OPWOOOO?*£D 

Sampling Station Descnption: 
I n f l u e n t 

in(1) - Enter 1 for Continuous, 2 for Composite, 3 for Grab Sample 

;inf2) - Enter frequency of sampling 

Reporting L a b : 

Water Quality Management, Inc. 
Analyst 

(i)L 
(2)L 

Day 

01 

02 

03 

04 ' 

(0004 5) 
T o t a l 

F j r s c i p i t a t i o n 
Inches 

0 

•5 

(00530) 
Total Suspended 

So l ids 
m g / l 

(50Q47) 
r iaw, Peat: Rate 

MGD 

""6."126 

(90082) 
C30D 5 day 

mg/1 

0 . 1 2 6 
- - - - -

1.5 0 .606 

05 

06 

07 

0 8 

09 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

16 

.19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

TOTAL! 

AVG t 
MAX i 
MiN ) 

3 

2 . 3 

0 

0 

• ' • o " 

0 

1 

0 
1.2" -

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

. 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

11 

0 . 3 5 4 B 

s> 
0 

.- . .̂ .̂ 

388 

S3 

— - - • - -

100 

• 

622 

1 = 5 . 5 
388 
51 

0 .627 

0 . 6 3 2 

• AH 

AH 

AH 

AH 

AH 

AH 

AH 

AH 

AH 

AH 

AH 

AK 

AH 

AH 

AH 

AH 

AH 

AH 

AH 

AH 

F-M 

AH 

AH 

AH 

2 . S 5 3 

Q.40-^6 

0 .532 
0 .126 

- - • -

SO 

240 

200 

150 

- • ~ -

650 
1 6 2 . 5 

240 
60 

- - -

0 1 

1 
^ 
i 

Q 

0 . 

- - -

0 

0 

csrtify under Ihe penatty of law that t have personally examined and am familiar with Ihe information submitted and based on my 
r^quiry of those individuals immediately responstbte for obtaining the information, I believe the submitted information is true, accurate 
ind complete. I dm aware that there are signifieant penatties for submitting blse tnfomnation. including the pocsibility of line and imprisonment 

Date Report Completed: 
0 2 / 1 4 / 2 0 0 5 . 

^^ignature of Reporter Title of Reporter 
T r u s t e e 

=omi No EPA 4600 (8-91) 
Generated by SWIMSJ 
-ormerJy EPA SURI (AOt U ' 1 

Page 1 o;: 







ONTHLY REPORT FORM 4500 

Name, Address City, County, ZIP : 
utility Operators Corporation 
South of intersection of Jackson Twp. Rds. 434 & 
435 
Byesville OH 43723 

Station Code : Reported Date (Month Year): Application 
601 September 2004 OPWOOOO^-ED 

Sampling Station Description : 
I n f l u e n t 

1C 

tin(1) - Enter 1 for Continuous, 2 for Composite, 3 for Grab Sample 

|in{2) - Enter frequency of sampling 

Reporting Lab ; 

Water Quality. Management, Inc 
Analyst 

(i)L 
(2)1 

S Q G O ^ C 

Day 

01 " 

(0004 5} 
Tota l 

Prec-p i ta t icn 
Inches 

(00530} 
T c t a l Suspended 

So l i ds 
mg/1 

(5004 7? 
Flow, Peak R a t e 

MGD 

(80082) 
C30D 5 day 

mg/1 

0.13i 
0 2 

0 3 

0 4 

0 5 

0 6 

0 7 

0 8 

0 9 

10 

11 

12 

1 3 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

2 0 

21 

2 2 

2 3 

2 4 

2 5 

2 6 

2 7 

2 8 

2 9 

3 0 

31 

TOTALS 

AVG j 
MAX |. 

MIN j 

, 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

2 

3 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

6 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

1 3 . 3 

0.4 4 33 
6 

G 

1 5 1 

7 0 

1 2 6 

4 1 

3 8 8 

51 

1 5 1 

4 1 

0.137 

0 .132 

0 .117 

0 .102 

0 . 1 4 1 

0 .176 

0 .632 

0 .632 

0 .39 

0 . 2 1 3 

0.1B3 

0 .177 

0 .187 

0 .167 

0 .158 

0 .632 

0 . 6 1 3 

0 .389 

0 . 2 0 9 

0 .158 

0 . 1 7 3 

0 . 1 8 1 

0 .17 

0 .148 

0 .132 

0 . 1 5 3 

0 . 1 6 

0 . 1 9 3 

0 .17 

i 7 . , 6 

1 0 .2387 
1 0 .532 

• 0 .102 

i 
t 
1 
1 

98 

1 0 0 

1 8 0 

1 0 0 

4 7 8 •: 

• l l r . 5 

C 1 0 

• 

-1 .1 
I c C 

98 C i 
I 

r. 
• J ii 

. - 1 

I certify under the penalty of law that I have personally examined and am familiar with the information submitted and based on my 
inquiry of those individuals immediately responsible for obrtaining the irtfdmration, I believe the submitted information is true, accurate 
and complete, tam aware that then» are significant penatties for submitting false information, including the possibliityoffineand Imprisonment. 

Date Report Completed: 
1 0 / 1 1 / 2 0 0 4 

LC 

-Signature of Reporter Title of Reporter 
;ee 

' { 

Form No EPA 4500 (8-91) 
{Generated by SWIMS) 
Formeriy EPA SURI U6(l^-£f^^J^ 

Page 1 c 
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z^^^ 
fOoi^ 1 ^ 

ByesviHe 
SUNK from page A-1 
^e village would be he^mig 
solve a potendaUy big problem 
far tile plaat owner, the govern-
me^ agencies and the residents 
oi the.subdivision, die village 
also stands to benefit 

With 160 homes ^cd to tim 
system aiMl another 100 thait 
could be connected, the village 
could receive as much as 
$300»000 in additional revenue 
over the next several years, he 
said. 
Gadd echoed that belief. 
"We think it*s a positive 

thing," he said. 'There ace other 
homes out there with t^nporary 
septic permits that have been in 
place for 30^sotne years; And 
they're going to make them all 
come into the system." 

Chandler said that, to this 
point, the village only has 
engaged in discussions. 

"We* re going to see how ba^y 
they want to get rid of it" he 
said. 
Councilman Bob Long ui^ed 

caution. 
"You say that look at us as 

White Kmghts," he said. "Of 
course. They want us to take 
[the plant] off their hands. 

"But ace we inheriting some
thing — How much is it going 
to cost the citizens of 

*^e told them npfioat that the 
citizens 6f Byeŝ ^Ue shouldn*t 
{>ay one dime,** Chandler said. 

He reiterated that 0ie gov^n-
ment agencies would have to 
fmd a way "erase the debT 
owed on the plant and pay for 
the corrections that need to be 
made. 

" IW wMe l̂ e^ndOF^ere has 

Chsmdler said; "The cnlvefts ace 
backed up, die sewer lines are 
plugged up. 

'The people out diere and the 
schocd system ate paying for a 
sewer system and t h ^ are get
ting nothing. It's pretty bad." 

(poweOd^y^.com) 

D 
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B 

51b. 
Ham 

Choose Your Meal 
(Nexty 

(Pick Your 2 Favorite Sidesl 

4 lbs. Mashed Poatoes & 2 ft®. Gravy 
4 lbs. Green Bear) Casserole 
4 lbs. Horrtemade Baked Beans 
4 lbs. Potato Salad 

(Then We Will Add) ^ 
1 boz. Dinner Rolls & Butter 
1 lb. Cmf̂ erfy Baude f ^ M M 
1 - r Pumpkin Pie ^ ^ ^ 

Delivered^49.95 Hot & Ready To Eat! 

DIMITS 
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axt^viJLJLm 

ctals iiexe conttaed dlsp^jsioi^ 
We±iesday ahon^ ^N\^l& to 
take oW the c^»mtioii of E ||n^ 
vately owned wasteiwater treatr 
ment plant soalhwest of town. 

Sev^:ai govermnent officials 
from the Ohio ^^^k^i|^n|B]^ 
Prelection Agency ind tb£> Rural 
Development division of the 
U.S. Department^/^qjlture 
urged the village td^t^dV^l i r 

"We believe that Byesville caii 
operate it more efSci^iti^ than 
it currc îtly is (^)erate^'' B ^ d 
M. Douglas said. Douglas is 

Coundlniaii G e ^ Netting 
expressed quabn^ ŝ isQi taking 
.oyex the plant, which server 
most of th^ Rolling Hills 
Subdivision as w^H ^^ the 
schools at tiie Meadowtook 
caucus. 

"The Number One #ti® J have 
against [taJdngitoyerL** Nettinĝ  
said, " is that we're puttii^ 
togethw otB* own sewer plant ! 

"That i^ant out ^bsŝ  has iuut 
years of neglect If s been a mess 
as io&g as I can remember. I 
thmk we need to comrentrate on 
bur own sewer plant" 

Mayor Don Oadd said that, byl 
taking over t h e ^ ^ ^ i ^ 1M& 
plant, the villag^^^inld de&ay 
some of t!^ &aa l̂̂ ek ŝa£ will 

new 
user& 

l ^ . o l - ^ village 
a Fd^^>^|5w^ late 

itrth-
erwise would be. 

1r^'~ *--^ 

"ihat cattt h^m^mis^:^^ 

About $120,00arDaM^^kJ»^^ 
ed for m ^ y ^ ^ t s t i ^ w ^ ^ 
correct imjbie^ k ' Qj^ p K l 
Rtn^ Deveto{hhei^ pfobS^^^ 
could come thEough with a 
$3%O0D grant R^ityinex^ of 
the rest of the money, j t o i t 
$250,000, would becon^ the 
iaditectresponsibility of the Vil-

.«BQ]Uai.ft{̂ Ml:̂  as^4S9a^te 
^eri^iokf. a c o ^ l ^ i ^ ^ g i -
116^ wi& W.B. i ^ksa l l and 
A$socia£es, New PIppdelphia. 

The citizens of Byesville 
#&di<l m& have to pay for the 
balance owed nor for any 
improvements mmle, said Mark 
Chandler, Byesville Wastewater 
sitper^ei^nt Hie resictents 
served by the plant will pay for 
the plant 



Village may 
take over 
sewer plant 
JOHN LOWE 
THE VILLAGE REPOOTEH 

BYESynXB — The vi&ige 
finds itself in a positicm poten
tially to s^ve somecsie else's 
problem while helpmg itself. 
Village Council teamed recent
ly. 

A privately own^ wastewats 
treatment plant southwest oi 
town has majcn- problems ^id a 
variety of parties wish tl^ vil
lage Wtmld take ov^ the (Want's 
operation, Mark Chandler said. 

The plant was designed to 
serve 160 homes in the Rc^l^ 
Hills Subdivision. 

Chandler, who is the village 
wastewater supervisoi; said be, 
Mayor Don Gadd and 
Administrator Rich^d Rausch 
went to a CohimbBS meeting 
several wedcs ago. 
There they conferred i i ^ the 

owner of the plant and with rep-
res^l^ves cC j N t ^ ^ W $ ' 

Environmeotsl' ^cotec#^ 
Agency and tihe U.S. 
Departmex^ of Agricidtnre. 

"All of these parties axe ixAesc-
ested in us because of the situa
tion out there," Changs said. 
'*They really want to s&e 
Byesville step up and tsdce tins 
plant" 

Right now, before meeting 
again with the agraicies, the vil
lage is trying to ot^ain estimates 
and figures pertaining to the 
plant and repairs that may be 
necessary. 

"Our goal is to get the cinrent 
debt [on the plant] erased and 
get some additional monies," 
Chandler said. **If they want us 
to take [the plant], som^)ody is 
going to have to ante up some 
money." 

Giv^ the Columbus people^ 
interest in Byesville taking over 
thf rt}iint mnttp.rn roi lM m o v e 

xa& alwugb It is m 
severely bad shE^," he said. 

'The ^ A ri^^red to as and 
the maiyĉ  as a WMte Knight 
We're going to come in and save 
theday-"̂  

Oi^dler said that, ^though 
the vOlage woidd be hel|Mng 
strive a potentially big problem 
frar the plant owttcr, tile govraa-: 
m ^ ag«3cies and the i^den^ 
ei &e sttbdivi^c^ die viU2^ 
also stanch to b^iedlt 

Mtii 160 h c ^ ^ tied to the 
system artd ano&er 100 that 
could be oomieceed, tite vffiagef 
coul4 reci^ye as omch as 
$300,000 In additicftî  rev^ue 
over the next severai years, he 
smd. 

Gadd edlyped Iteb^ef. 
**Vi^^M& it's a positive 

ig0:^& that liave heea in; 
place for 30-k3im yearn And 

' M 

diat, to this 
poii^ the vMage only has 
en^ged in disCnŝ kms. 

**We'rie going to see how badly 
they want to get rid of it," he 
said: 

Gounciltnan Bdb Long mged 
caution. 

"You say that look at us as 
White Knights," he said. "Of 
course. Tbey want us to take 
[the plant] off tfaek hands. 

"But w& we ihh^ting scrnie-; 
dnng — How nmdi is it gomg 
to cost the citizens of 
Byesville?" 

**We told them up&ont that the 
dtisoens of Byesville shoul<hi't 
p ^ one dime," Chandler said. 

He reiterated that the govern?^ 
ment ag^icies would have to 
find a way "erase the debt" 
owed on the plam and pay fcff 
the corrections that need to be 
mafte. • 
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

STATE OF OHIO, 

OFFICE OF THE SECKETARY OF STATE. 

J", Sherrod Brown 

do hereby certify that I am the duly elected, qualified and present acting Secret

ary of State for the State of Ohio, and as such have custody of the records of Ohio 

and Foreign corporations; that said records show UTILITY OPERATOR'S CORPORATION, 

an Ohio not-for-profit corporation, Charter No. 528004, having its principal 

location in Grove City, County of Franklin, was incorporated on December 26th, 1978 

and is currently in GOOD STANDING upon the records of this office. 

WITNESS my hand and ofUcial 

seal at Columhus, Ohio, this 

—lilh—day of Pfi^t'ejl , 

A. D. 19 Ai,, 

0 ^ ^ /dupi^ 
Sherrod Brown 

Secretary of State 

UOd ^ . ^ 
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REPORT ON THE BACKUP OF WATER E^TO 
MR. BENET'S BASEMENT ON SEPTEMBER 8 AND 17, 2004 

IN THE ROLLING HILLS SUBDIVISION 

The flooding of Mr. Bennett's home in the Rolling Hills Subdivision at 101 Amy Lane, 
Byesville, Ohio on September 8,2004 was a result of excessive rainfall from Hurricane Frances. 
The Rolling Hills area received two inches of rain on September 7 and five inches on September 
8. This amount of rain caused major flooding in Guernsey County. The County was under a 
state of emergency. The road to the sewage plant was flooded and impassable for three days. 
On September 9 the southbound lanes of 1-77 were reduced to one lane in the area of Byesville 
due to high water. 1-70 had been closed due to high water. 

On September 17, Hurricane Ivan came through the area and dumped six inches of rain in the 
Rolling Hills area. This again caused major flooding in the area and the backup of water in Mr. 
Bennett's basement. 

The enclosed pictures and articles from the Daily Jeffersonian newspaper describe the flooding 
that occurred because of Hurricanes Frances and Ivan. 

The area storm drainage systems and streams were incapable of handling this amount of rain, 
resulting in major flooding of the area and the backup of water into Bennett's basement. The 
flooding caused the storm water to enter the sanitary sewer in volimies that exceeded the 
capacity of the sanitary sewer system lift station. 

Mr. Bennett's basement is the lowest basement on the sanitary sewer system. When the sanitary 
sewer is overloaded with storm water, water will backup into his basement. 

The articles and pictures in the Daily Jeffersonian and the rain records for September 7, 8, and 
17, 2004 clearly show the excessive rainfall and the major flooding that resulted from the two 
hurricanes that came through the area. 

The backup into Mr. Bennett's basement is directly caused by the excessive amount of rain from 
Hurricanes Frances and Ivan. 

• OF ^*>. 

EDWARD 
k 

EiSCHOFT I bf I Edward A. Bischoff, P.E., P.S. 
28953 J^/ 

Enclosure: ^ ^ a ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ s ^ 
Ohio EPA MontSy Operating Report Form 6500 for September 2004 
Daily Jeffersonian articles and photographs 
Mr, Bischoff s Resume 

(xot U^^ 



Mof̂ '̂ ^ ONTHLY REPORT FORM 4500 

Name, Address City, County, ZIP : 
utility Operators Corporation 
South of iritersection of JaoKson Twp. Rds. 434 & 

ByesvilleOH 43723 

Station Code: Reported Date (Month Year): Application 
601 September 2004 0PWOO007*ED 

Sampling Station Description: 
Influent 

10/13/( 

in(1) - Enter 1 for Continuous, 2 for Composite, 3 for Grab Sample 

in(2) - Enter frequency of sampling 

(1) 
(2) 

Day 

01 
02 
03 
04 
05 

, 06 
07 

Reporting Lab: 
Water Q u a l i t y Management, I n c . 

Analyst: 

1 1 

999 1 
(00045) 
Total 

Prec ip i ta t ion 
Inches 

0 . 3 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

__ .2 

08 i 5. 
09 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
26 
29 

i 30 
! 31 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

6 

0 

0 

' 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

2 

2 

(00530) 
Total Suspended 

Solids 
mg/1 

1 5 1 

7 0 

1 2 6 

4 1 

; 
[TOTAL 13.3 
1 AVG 0.4433 

IWAX 6 

MJN 0 

3 8 8 

97 

1 5 1 

4 1 

1 2 

999 2 
(50047) (80082) 

Flow, Peak Rate CBOD 5 day 
MGD mg/1 

0 .135 

0 .137 

0 .132 

0 .117 

0 .102 

0 . 1 4 1 

0 .176 

0 .632 

0 ,632 

0 .39 

0 .213 

0 . 1 8 3 

0.177 

0 .187 

0 .167 

0 .158 

0 .632 

0 . 6 1 3 

0 .389 

0 .209 

0 .158 

0 . 1 7 3 

0 . 1 8 1 

98 

1 0 0 

1 8 0 

0.17 i 

0 .148 

0 .132 

0 .153 

0 .16 

0 .193 

0.17 

7 .16 

0 .2387 
j 0 .632 

j 0 .102 

1 0 0 

4 7 8 

1 1 9 . 5 
1 8 0 

98 

. 

0 

° 

0 

1 0 

0 

0 

I c e t ^ under the penal^ of law ihat I have personalty eianiined and am familiar witii the information submitted and based on my 
inquiry of those Individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the Infomiation, I believe the submitted information is true, aTCurate 
and complete. I am aware ttiat ttiere are signrRcant penatties for submitting fo^ Infomuftion, including the possibility of fine and miprisonment. 

Date Report Completed: 
1 0 / 1 1 / 2 0 0 4 

^^na tu re of Reporter: jitie of Reporter: 

Fonm No EPA 4500 (8-81) 
{Generated by SWIMS) 

Paget of 



Frances is here 

September 8, 2004 Email To A Friend 
S I I Printer Friendly 

- Rick Stillion Comments 

, '̂%l̂ i: ̂ ^ Daily Jeffersonian 
I * •> • 

• ' J " " • -

S -i- .':"• 1'JJ The remnants of tropical depression Frances dumped 2.95 inches of rain on the 
Cambridge area in the last 24 hours, according to measurements talcen at the Cambridge 
Water Treatment Plant. 

The heavy rainfall created havoc for some local drivers, as a motorist reported his vehicle was stuck in a sink hole 
on Hendershot Road between Route 313 and Crane Run Road early Wednesday. 

At 2:10 a.m. Wednesday, the Cassell Station and New Concord fire departments were dispatched to assist a 
motorist stranded in flood waters. 

Minor injuries were reported by the driver of the vehicle on Hendershot Road, but additional information was not 
available as the accident remained under investigation by the Ohio State Highway Patrols Cambridge post. 

Rain was also reportedly a factor in an early morning accident on County Road 35 (Old 21 Road) and an accident 
on Interstate 70 Tuesday afternoon. 

Spencer Township trustees were alerted to a culvert being washed out by heavy rains at the intersection of Crane 
Run and Hendershot roads. 

A mud slide was reported on U.S. 40, which was cleared by an Ohio Department of Transportation crew. 

High water was also reported on several local roadways, including Routes 78, 83,146,147 and 660; County Road 
35; Phillips Road and Savage Road, according to the highway patrol and Guernsey County Sheriffs Office. 

A flood watch for Guernsey and Noble counties was issued by the National Weather Service office in Pittsburgh, 
Pa., from noon today (Wednesday) through 8 p.m. Thursday. 

According to the weather bulletin issued by the National Weather Service, the remnants of Hurricane Frances will 
interact with a stalled front in southeastern Ohio and is expected to generate heavy rainfeli across the region. 

Rain will reportedly increase in intensity throughout today and continue into Thursday. Stream flooding is likely 
where rainfall accumulations exceed three inches. 

Local authorities remind motorists not to drive through waters on local road, as swift moving currents can sweep 
vehicles off the roadway. 

http:y/www.daily-jeff.com/news/article/242172 4/18/2007 
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DRENCHED!: Two die in flood 

September 9, 2004 Email To A Friend 
Printer Friendly 

Rick Stillion Comments 

The Daily Jeffersonian 

Two deaths were attributed to flooding after more than eight mches of rain fell in the 
region during a 4S-hour period as remnants of Hurricane Frances slowly passed through. 

In Cambridge, John McCance, 65, was found dead by his landlord after she left him 
alone for about 30 minutes. He was reportedly helping her pump water out of a basement at a North Sixth Street 
home. 

The Guernsey County Coroners Office reported the cause of death for McCance would be listed as natural causes 
with the flood conditions listed as a contributing factor. 

It was one of those things where the stress of using the pump and helping the person clear the basement was enough 
to precipitate a heart attack. Coroner Janet Brockwell told the Associated Press. 

McCance was transported to Southeastern Med by United Ambulance, where he was pronounced dead at 6:40 p.m. 

In neighboring Tuscarawas County, Leah Mast, a 9-year-old Amish girl, drown after being swept away in flood 
waters while walking home from school. 

Mast was reportedly found in flood waters a couple hours after being swept away, as she and five siblings returned 
home. She was also tratisported to Southeastern Med, where she was pronounced dead. 

Local officials met Thursday morning to assess damages caused by extensive flooding in the county. 

We are pulling people into the EOC (Emergency Operations Center) in order to determine the damages, said 
Guemsey County Emergency Management Agency Director Gerry Beckner. 

We are receiving reports of flooding from throughout the county, she said. We will begin assessing the damages, 
and I expect we will make a determination regarding how to proceed early this morning. 

There has not been a form emergency declaration at this time, said Beckner before press time Thursday. 

Officials opened the EOC started at approximately 9;30 p.m. Wednesday and remained at the site Thursday 
morning. 

Resource requests were received by EOC staff overnight, including a request for a generator, pumps and an 
overnight shelter, provided with the assistance of the American Red Cross, for four stranded motorists. 

Guernsey County Commissioner Steve Alien said he expected commissioners to declare a local emergency the first 
step in receiving federal assistance for clean up efforts in the county. 

We are meeting with the county engineer and other officials this morning to receive damage assessments, said 
Allen. We will then determine if we need to declare a local disaster and send it to the state for the governor to 
declare the county a disaster emergency. 

From there, the governor will sent the information to the federal level, which is required to start receiving Federal 
Emergency Management Agency assistance and funding for clean up efforts, said Allen. 

http://www.daily-jeff.com/news/article/242400 4/18/2007 
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Individuals needing emergency assistance are reminded to call the sheriffs office or 911, but those simply reporting 
damages are asked to call the Guemsey County EMA office at 432-9292. 

We have individuals manning the telephones to collect information regarding damage assessments, said Beckner. 
Only call 911 if you have an emergency or an immediate need. Otherwise, call the EMA office. 

The flooding kept law enforcement officials and volunteer fire departments busy throughout the evening 
Wednesday and overnight, as numerous individuals were either evacuated from flooded areas or stranded vehicles. 

Law enforcement officers, including sheriffs deputies and Ohio State Highway Patrol troopers were busy 
monitoring the flood waters and reporting information back to us here at the EOC, said Beckner. 

Numerous calls were received by the sheriffs office reporting individuals stranded in vehicles or homes throughout 
the county. 

Volunteer firefighters often used small boats to rescue the individuals, and the sheriffs ofiRces new rescue air boat 
was used to rescue two individuals stranded on Route 821 in southern Guernsey County just before midnight. 

The two motorist reportedly became stranded when their vehicle stalled in flood water. They were able to push it 
onto a bridge which was above the flood level at the time and waited to be rescued. 

We responded at the request of the Pleasant City Volunteer Fire Department after rescuers tried to reach the 
motorists in a small boat, but were unsuccessful due to the swift current, said Sheriff Mike McCauley. 

The water level was shifting dramatically when we arrived, which made getting into the location difficult But, the 
boat worked as it was intended and we were able to reach them on the bridge despite the current, winds, debris and 
tree tops. 

The boat was also requested to assist with the search of a stranded motorist in the Quaker City area, after he notified 
his wife he was stranded but didnt know the exact location. 

Volunteer firefighters from Quaker City searched roads around the village and eventually located the man after 1 
a.m. Thursday. He was rescued with the use of the air rescue boat. 

The volunteer fireman have really been at it moving people in small boats, said McCauley, who warned motorists to 
stay off closed roadways. Individuals driving on closed roadways can and will be cited. 

Numerous roadways were affected by flood waters as of press time Thursday. 

The county highway department does not have the manpower and signs to place on all water-covered roadways, 
said Guemsey County Engineer Del George. Motorists will be traveling at their own risk. Please be advised, do not 
drive into or through flooded highways. 

The following list of affected roadways was provided by the sheriffs office: 

Interstate 70 (westbound between Cambridge and New Concord); U.S. Routes 22 (at Winterset) and 40 (between 
Cambridge and New Concord); and State Routes 285,146, 265 (at Kipling), 313 (at Interstate 77), 340, 513 (at 
Oxford Road), 658, 660, 672, 821. 

Interstate 70 reopened at 9:30 a.m. Thursday. 

The following county and township roads were also effected or closed: Eighth Street Road, Beal Road, Beeham 
Run Road, Bridgewater Road, Broadhead Road, Broom Road, Claysville Road, County Home Road, Covered 
Bridge Road, Easton Road, Ecklebeny Road, Fogle Road, Frankfort Road, Freedom Road; 

And, Georgetown Road, Greenbriar Road, Hamilton Road, Howell Road, Iowa Road, Laughman Road, Morgan 

http://www.daily-jeff.com/news/article/242400 4/18/2007 
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Road, Oakwood Road, Old 21 Road, Old Glory Road, Old National Road, Oxford Road, Phillips Road, Pigeon Gap 
Road, Robins Road, Rosedale Road, Savage Road, Shaw Road, Shriver Road, Slasor Road, Wadsworth Road and 
Walhonding Road. 

The rainfall was only two inches less than the 10 inches received during a four-day period in 1998, which caused 
extensive flooding in Guemsey County. 

http://www.daily-jeff.com/news/article/242400 4/18/2007 
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City weathers the storm; Wills Creek bridge closed 

September 9,2004 Em.ailXo.AJFriend_ 
Printer Friendly 

Dan Davis Comments 

The Daily Jeffersonian 

The Cambridge Water Treatment Plant reported that in the period from 8 a.m. 
Wednesday to the same time Thursday, 5.33 inches of rain fell there. 

This combined with 2.95 inches that fell in the previous 24-hour period to bring the 
storm total to more than 8 1/4 inches. 

Though flood waters in some portions of the city have subsided since Wednesday, the major concern this morning 
was Wills Creek, said Street Superintendent Jerry ODonnell. 

Water is over the north part of the bridge [at WiUs Creek Valley Drive], he said about 8:30 a.m. Thursday, to a 
depth of as much as 10 inches. The water was rising about six inches an hour. 

Authorities continued to monitor the rising waters, as both the Cambridge Health and Rehabilitation Center and 
Victorian Oaks assisted living facility, as well as apartment buildings and dozens of homes, are located nearby. 

ODonnell added that the bridge crossing Wills Creek on Eighth Street Road was closed, though water was not 
covering the bridge decking as of about 8:30 a.m. Thursday.Despite extensive problems caused by heavy flooding 
throughout Guemsey County, authorities in Cambridge said they had experienced few difficulties. 

We havent had to deal with any major incidences, said Police Chief Richard W. Wayt Thursday morning. 

An increase in traffic volume passing through the city due to a temporary reroute from Interstate 70 along Route 
209 west to Route 83 has created some traffic snarls, he added. 

Cambridge police asked residents to travel only if necessary, and reminded motorists to not drive through flood 
waters. Officers assisted Ohio Department of Transportation crews and troopers from the Cambridge post of the 
State Highway Patrol overnight in redirecting interstate traffic. 

Elsewhere in the city, a portion of Ohio Avenue was damaged when water rising through holes in a manhole cover 
covered by asphalt lifted the recently paved roadway. City streets crews were able to rupture the bulge, allowing 
water to escape. 

ODonnell said that when paving is performed, manhole covers will be collared to allow access to them. Manhole 
covers no longer actively used may remain covered, however. 

Water lifting up manhole covers was a city-wide occurrence, he added. With the storm systems overwhelmed by 
the volume of water, the water will seek the path of least resistance. 

Theres not much you can do about that, ODonnell said. 

ODormeli said street crews were out in force to deal with any problems that might arise. 

Were going to do the best we can, he said. 

ODonnell reminds motorists that, when approaching a traffic light that is flashing yellow, to proceed through the 
intersection with caution. Cross traffic at such an intersection will have a flashing red light, to be treated as a stop 
sign: approach, stop, yield to traffic with the right of way and proceed only when safe to do so. 

http://www.daily-jeff.com/news/article/242412 4/18/2007 
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Cambridge firefighters were busy Wednesday afternoon and evening, responding to nine calls in a span of more 
than eight hours. 

At 3:09 p.m., an Orchard Avenue woman reported smoke in the basement of her home. Firefighters reportedly 
located an electric appliance cord and pulled a scorched electric fan from flood waters in the basement. Burnt 
clothmg was also observed. The rising flood waters extinguished the blaze. 

Other caUs included: 

12:13 Elm Street woman expressed concern for appliances in her basement 

3:25 traffic accident with entrapment call on Interstate 77 was canceled while units were enroute 

4:43 smoke was found in the basement of a Lincoln Street apartment building, determined to be due to a flooded 
furnace 

4:50 units assisted United Ambulance Service crews move a patient from a North Sixth Street home 

6:10 report of automobile over an embankment on Glenn Highway 

7:06 units investigated possible flooding in the basement of a Beckett Avenue home 

8:01 light bulb in a pole at a Southgate Parkway business was found blown 

8:35 units responded to a report of an automobile in flood waters on East Pike; the driver reported by cellular 
telephone he was out of the vehicle and firefighters confirmed this. 

Area schools were affected by the rising water as well, as the Cambridge, Rolling Hills, East Muskingum, Caldwell, 
Noble Local, and East Guemsey school districts were closed. Bamesville and Newcomerstown schools were 
operating on a two hour delay. 

http://www.daily-jeff.com/news/article/242412 4/18/2007 
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STILL SOAKED: County under state of emergency 

•^Ttc-il—r 2'̂ "'* Email To A Friend 
Printer Friendly 

Kick Stillion Comments 

i lie Daily Jeffersonian 

As flood waters begin to recede in portions of Guernsey County, local officials are 
awaiting word on federal assistance to help with the clean up and repair of more than $1 
million in damage, which doesnt include personal property damage. 

Guemsey County commissioners signed a declaration yesterday declaring a state of emergency in the county. Ohio 
Gov. Bob Taft declared a state of emergency in Guernsey County later in the day Thursday. 

Officials still dont know the extent of damages. 

We have to wait for the water to recede before we can see the damage to the culverts, bridges and roads, said 
Commissioner Steve Allen. Once the rain stops, it takes at least 36 hours for things (water levels) to retum to 
normal. 

While many of the roadways, bridges and culverts remained under water early Friday, Guemsey County Engineer 
Del George said damages to those structures should easily exceed $1 million. 

This is similar to the 1998 flood and based on past history and experience, the damages will be in excess of $1 
million so far, said George, who observed the flooding from an Ohio State Highway Patrol helicopter Thursday. 

Wills Creek was expected to crest early Friday at 25 feet 10 feet above the flood stage according to the National 
Weather Service and Guemsey County Emergency Management Agency Director Gerry Beckner. 

The National Weather Service said it (Wills Creek) appears to be cresting, but the final call will not be made until 
later this morning, Beckner said Friday. We are currently at 24.9 feet and it looks like it will crest here (at 
Cambridge) today at 25 feet. 

But officials warned the crest will take longer to reach northern portions of the county, as Wills Creek flows north 
through Guemsey County. 

The readings are based on the Campbell Avenue gauge station, but it will take another day or so for the crest to 
travel through the northern part of the county, said George. We are starting to look at the eastern and southeastern 
regions of the county today, but it will be next week before we get good damage estimates on the entire county. 

Flood waters continued to rise Thursday as water reached the Cambridge area from the surrounding regions. 

The water continued to rise here in Cambridge because of the water coming out of the hflls into the creeks and runs 
that feed into Wills Creek, said Beckner. The dam at Seneca Lake was closed, so they were not letting any water 
out into Wills Creek. The lake had nothing to do with the flooding. 

George wamed residents that repairs from the latest flooding could take a while to be completed, as county workers 
are just completing repairs from the flooding in January 2004. 

This is the third (declared) disaster this year, said George. We had the flooding in January, the heavy rains and slips 
in May and June and now this flooding. We are still working on the repairs from the first flood in January, and we 
are just starting to receive approvals for the May-June damages. 

Now we are going to have to start the paperwork all over again for damages from this flooding and that will take 
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into the winter. It takes a lot of man-hours to get the process done. It is not east to get back to normal following an 
incident like this, said George. 

Individuals who wish to report personal property damage are asked to call the Guemsey County EMA at 432-9292. 

:o.̂ y. Svuih'uiaoMtd'sDiibr'BiSRppoilOPiqiCtaHelp S S S S S 3 ' 
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Evacuations in Byesville 

September 10, 2004 _ Email To A Friend 
Printer Friendly 

John Lowe Comments 

The Daily Jeffersonian 

BYESVILLE Evacuations and a dramatic rescue characterized a day in the village quite 
different from Wednesday night. 

Rising water Thursday flooded homes on the east side as residents of Peters Street evacuated. Mayor Don Gadd 
said. 

The people went to shelters and to the homes of friends and relatives. 

Meanwhile, an unknown man proved to be a hero when he saved the life of a boy on the south side of town. 

Apparently, some juveniles were riding bicycles through water on flooded Marietta Road when the current knocked 
a boy off of his bicycle, Gadd said. 

The boy was being swept into a culvert. 

The only thing showing was his head and his hands, Gadd said. 

A man in a silver tmck stopped, pulled the boy to safety, got back into his tmck as Byesville firefighters were 
arriving and left the scene. 

We dont know who he was, Gadd said. But, whoever it was, tell him we said. Thanks. 

That culvert is about 700 feet long. So, the boy would have drowned. 

Firefighters conducted several water rescues, Gadd said, mainly at Seneca Lane near the Narrows soutii of the 
viUage where Route 821 also was flooded. 

Firefighters, village employees and the administration were all over the village Thursday trying to contain or 
minimize the effects of water they had thought they had under control the night before. 

Gadd sent Water Department employees to Cambridge Thursday morning to get 200 empty, burlap feed bags at 
Green Valley Co-op. 

He and the crews spent the morning filling the bags and stacking them at doors of some Main Street homes and 
businesses. 

We had about 20 homes that flooded out, Gadd said. 

All of the village utilities were still operational Thursday afternoon and the water department pumped an extm half 
million gallons of water into the new plant as a precaution, Gadd said. 

At 2 p.m., Gadd went to the wastewater treatment plant to survey the situation. 

The water level was still about 3 feet below the top of the dike around the plant. 

Had the village not added 5 feet to the height of the dike after the record flood of 98, the plant would have been 

http://wvm.daily-jeff.com/news/article/242561 4/18/2007 
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flooded Thursday. 

Gadd was mystified by the sudden rise in flood water. 

It was fine until 3:30 this morning, he said on Thursday. Then, almost on the dot, it started going up a foot an hour. 

We had the water out. Now, its backing up. Where its coming from, I dont know. 

But, if Gadd was puzzled, he also was angry. 

We did everything we could to keep the water out, he said. 

But its rise Thursday was relentless. 

Gadd believes it didnt have to be that way. In 2003, he developed and shared with state and federal officials a plan 
he believes would have kept this flood out of Byesville. 

That plan called for flood basins and wetlands to be built along Wills Creek. Some officials had called his plan 
brilliant but, to this point, nothing has come of it. 

Gadd would like citizens of the village and of Cambridge to write to their state and federal legislators and to the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

He wants people to urge that action be taken on his plan. 

Everyone said. That kind of flood wont happen again. 

If we had had those basins, he said, we wouldnt be having this right now. 

Its time we started doing some kind of preventative measure instead of just waiting until this happens again. 

I said Wednesday night that we were in good shape. But were not in good shape today. 
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Officials: Parts of county still flooded, inaccessible 
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The Daily Jeffersonian 

Guemsey County officials continued to assess damages over the weekend, but some regions were still inaccessible 
due to remaining flood waters. 

We worked throughout the weekend assessing damages, and we are getting things put together today to forward 
some of the information on to the state, said Guemsey County EMA Director Gerry Beckner. 

But, there are still places in the county, especially in the north, we cant get to because of the flood water. The 
damage assessments are far from complete, and it could take a week or two to know exactiy how much damage is 
out there in the county. 

Officials continued to list damage assessments in excess of $1 million until all jurisdictions in the county can 
report. 

We have received assessments from some of the tmstees and mayors, but there are still some that need to be 
completed, said Beckner, who reports each village and township is responsible for gathering data from its 
jurisdiction. 

Once all of the information is collected, Beckner said she will forward it to the State of Ohio for assistance in 
obtaining a federal declaration for assistance from the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

On Friday, Rep. Bob Ney, R-St. Clairsville, said he directly petitioned President Bush for a federal declaration that 
would allow southeastern Ohio counties to obtain federal assistance. As of today. Bush had not declared 
southeastem Ohio a federal disaster area, which would make the area eligible for aid. 

The people of Guemsey County have been hit with a lot to deal with, but they have been fentastic, said Beckner. As 
soon as we have information available regarding assistance, we will get it distributed via the newspaper and radio. 

Individuals wishing to report property damage are asked to call the Guemsey County EMA office at 432-9292. 

Several roadways remain closed due to high water. Law enforcement agencies are warning motorists not to drive 
through flood waters. 

Four deaths were reported as a result of the flooding, including two women killed when their vehicle floated off a 
flooded Route 313 Thursday. Their bodies were discovered Friday in the vehicle in a ditch along Route 313. 

The women were identified as Lois Hastings, 41, and Gayla Norman, 43, of Walnut Street in Derwent. Other 
fatalities connected to the flooding included John McCance, 65, of Cambridge, and Leah Mast, 9, of Tuscarawas 
County. 

As damage assessments and recovery efforts continue in the county, officials are keeping an eye on Hurricane Ivan 
a potential second source of flood-causing rainfall due to hit the southern United States later this week. 

We are watching what it (Ivan) is doing, said Beckner. It is changing from minute to minute and there is a 
possibility it could hit here again. But, it is too early to tell right now. 

http://www.daily-jeff.com/news/article/243108 4/18/2007 

http://www.daily-jeff.com/news/article/243108


J - V C 4 1 1 y - i P \ ^ i , j . . ^ j W i i i i " t , ^ i v j 

FEMA weighs our damage 
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Now that the Federal Emergency Management Agency has completed preliminary damage assessments in 
Guernsey County, the waiting game has begun as federal authorhies tabulate damages to determine if Ohio 
including Guemsey and Noble counties is eligible for federal assistance. 

What we do now is wait, said Guernsey County EMA Director Gerry Beckner. They have completed the 
prelimmary damage assessments and now they will determine if the state receives a declaration and what counties 
are eligible. And, they will do that at their own pace. 

Beckner said the state has declared a state of emergency in 14 counties in the wake of recent flooding, all of which 
have to be assessed before a state declaration can be made by federal officials. 

All we can tell people is the information will be made available through the local media sources as soon as we 
receive it, said Beckner. We dont know when that will be, but people need to keep watching the paper and listening 
to the radio to get the information tiiey need. 

That information includes the toll-free FEMA telephone number to register for flood damage assistance. 

We dont have the manpower to call everybody who we know has damage, and there could be people with damage 
that we dont know about, said Beckner. So it is imperative that people check the local media for the information. 

Beckner said local residents can get the process of receiving assistance started by contacting their insurance 
companies a requirement by FEMA. 

Even if they dont have flood insurance, they need to file a claim with the insurance company where they have their 
homeowners policy, said Beckner. One of the things FEMA will ask for is a denial letter from their insurance 
company. 

If they get that process started now, they will be better prepared once the FEMA registration process begins, said 
Beckner. 

As the rains from the remnants of Hurricane Ivan moved into southeastem Ohio Friday moming, Beckner said 
county officials are ready for the worst. 

The EOC (Emergency Operations Center) is ready to opened at the first indication of any problems, said Beckner. 
At that point, we would contact the American Red Cross to open a shelter, and this can all be accomplished quickly. 

Some weather forecasts indicate as much as three to five inches of rain could fall in portions of southeastern Ohio 
and a flood watch remains in affect until Saturday afternoon. 

But other predictions indicate rain fall will not be as significant, and the chance of rain diminishes Friday night to 
30 percent, according to the Weather Channel. 

We are prepared and we are not going to stand down until this weather passes through the area, said Beckner. 
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î -̂ ^ The remnants of Hurricane Ivan closed businesses, canceled events and spurred 
l]3j;,ii recommendations of evacuations in various locations around Guemsey County. 

. ;•: •;,•; A personal tragedy and other dramas occurred during the flood. 

-•j<IUV' . ( L 

• M r - : • ti*. 
But the area was spared the sort of flooding Hurricane Francis caused the week before. 

Officials at the Cambridge Water Plant reported 4.15 inches of rain fell during the 
period of the flood. Water was still rising at the plant at 7:30 p.m. but Water Plant 
persoimei were uncertain of when the water would crest. 

According to the Web Site of die National Weather Service, Wills Creek was to crest at 2 a.m. this morning 
(Sunday) at 21.5 feet, or 6.5 feet over flood stage. 

The rainfall was far short of what fell the previous week, but it was enough to send water across roads and, among 
other things, disrupt the Guemsey County Fair. 

Waters began rising early Friday and, by 11:19 a.m., officials were asking residents of Derwent to consider leaving 
their homes. Some 50 minutes later, officials learned that low-lying areas of Quaker City were starting to flood [see 
separate story]. 

On Saturday moming, Byesville police officers were asking residents of Peters Street to leave as waters rose in the 
village. 

Later Saturday, water began to subside only to retum in places in the late afternoon. At 6 p.m. Saturday, a portion 
of Main Street was closed, Ptl. Tim Haren said. Water also was encroaching on High Avenue. 

A Senecaville area man died Friday afternoon. It was unclear whether the death was attributable to the flood. 

At 2:19 p.m., an Ideal Road woman reported she had just come home and found her husband wasnt breathing right. 

A deputy arrived at the scene and performed cardio-pulmonary resuscitation. Because of high water, the Lore City 
emergency squad could not get through. 

United Ambulance personnel arrived and, enroute to the hospital, were escorted by a sheriffs deputy from Ideal 
Road to tiie 10th Street Bridge in Byesville. 

On Saturday at 1:22 a.m., a Wagner Road man was reported to be experiencing severe problems in breathing. 

Quaker City did not have a squad available and could not get past Route 513 because of high water. Officials here 
contacted Bamesville police who were able to dispatch a squad that could reach the residence. 

A Cherry Hill Road man escaped drowning Friday morning on Ideal Road, but his pickup tmck was swept away by 
flood water. 

Other incidents included: 

http://www.daily-jeff.com/news/article/244217 4/18/2007 
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People trapped in a vehicle on Bridgewater Road with water up to the hood. A deputy and the Antrim Volunteer 
Fire Department went to the rescue. 

A report of an elderiy couple in water on Newgottengen Road. Senecaville and Quaker City fire departments were 
dispatched. Senecaville found them and reported they were safe. 

A Quaker City woman had to abandon her vehicle on Sparrow Road. 

A number of schools were closed or dismissed early on Friday. Businesses closed. High School football games 
were postponed. Events, such as the Cavalcade of Bands, were canceled. 

Gates at the fairgrounds remained open Friday. Anyone who ventured to the fair was admitted free, but the rides 
were shut down and the food concessions remained closed for most of the day. 

Fair Secretary Myra Larrick said attendance was not tracked. 

Although blue skies prevailed Saturday and fair operations returned to normal, remaining water across U.S. 40 
probably deterred some fairgoers. 

Action at the fair will wind down today after a llama show at 10 a.m. and the Rotroff Demolition Derby at 1 and 4 
p.m. 
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Frances Is 
Remnants 
of tropical 
depression 
cause iocal 
flooding 
RICK STILLION 
THE DAHY JEFFERSONIAN 

The remnants of Uopical 
depression Frances dumped 
2.95 inches of rain on the 
Cambridge afea in the last 24 
hours, according to measure
ments taken at the Cambridge 
Water Treatment Plant. 

The heavy rainfall created 
havoc for some loc^l drivers, as 
a molorisl reported his vehicle 
was stuck in a sink hole on 
Hendershot Road between 
Route 313 and Crane Run Road 
eaily Wednesday. 

At 2:10 a.m. Wednesday, the 
Cassell Station and JVew 
Concord fire departments were 
dispatched lo assist a motdrist 
stranded in flood waters. 

Minor injuries were reported 
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ty weathers the storm; Wills Creek bridge closi 
'IS 
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Damtmdge WaEer 
Plan! reported that in' 
»d frotn 8 am. 
.' to the same nme 
5.3? itichf!, ol raHi 

bined wi!h 2 95 inch-
t in iht' previous 24-
d (o hnHj: the slorm 
ri- lliiui X |/J inches. 

•. Though flood .waters in some 
pcfrtiOtis of the city have' sub
sided since Wei^iesday. the 
tnajor coiK-xm this morning was 
Wills Creel;, .said Stresl 
SuperiiUcndciit Jerry 
O'lXMinell. 

•"Water is over the nortb part of 
the bndge [at Wills Crecit 
Valley Drivel.'" be said aboUi 
8;-10 a.m. Thursday, to a depth 
ot a'; much as 10 inches. The 
.watep was rising about six inch

es an hour. 
Authoriliefs continued lo moni

tor the rising waters, as both the 
Con^bridgc Health -and 
Rehabilitation Ceatcr and 
Victorian 0^:s.assisted livuig 
facfliiy; as well as apaitmen! 
buildings and dozens of homes, 
•are located neartiy, 

O'Doancll added, that the 
bridge crossing Wilis Creek on; 
Eighth Street Road w^s closed, 
though water was not covering 

the brid^ 4eicki0j( u of ebout 
8:30 "svtti. MFh«tisd»y,DespiW 
extensive problems ^usod by 
heavy ftoQdlng thcoughoui 
Guernsey Comiy^ authonaes in 
Cambridge said they bad expert-
enceii few tUfficutUes 

"We haven't had to deol with 
any m ĵjor incidents," said 
Police Chief Richard W Wayi 
Tlwrsday tnoming. 
.An increase in iJaffic voJom^ 

pcissing through the city due tct a 

Michael NftlltoitfTh* Dally Jafftraonlan 
travel slowly through high water near the intersection of Interstate 77 and Route 313 eariy this morning. 

tempcH«o rcnxiie from 
tniofsta'e **>> i lx i j Rx.ls 20Q 
west o Knj>B "̂̂  ha fcK«ted 
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dents ti iidwelcnis if •»Ke^t•"^ 
and tem ntleJ n on is 'o i \ 
dove Ih^Mfcl. f N J vfti^rt 
Officers agisted' ^ Ohio 
Oepamneni of-Transponauon 
ctews and trot̂ KTS frqM the 
Cambridge post of'th^ Slate 
Highway Fatrol oVetnigtat in 
tediiectmg ioterstate traffic 
" Elsewhere in the dty, a portion 
of Ohio Aventie ^as cjai^agcd 
when water ri^og tbtoti^lioles 
m a manhole cover 6ovefed by 
asplialt lifte4lhe recently pd>ed 
roadway. City' streets ^ntvis 
were able to rupture the bulge 
allowing water to escape., 

O'Donnell said'that ^vhcn 
paving IS petforincd, 'manhole 
covers will be collared to nllnu 
access to them. Manhole co\Lrs 
no Ifxiger actively used may 
remain covered, however. 

Water biting up maidiole «.o\ 
ers was a city-widc occurrcnLt., 
he added With the stonn s>s-
terns overwhelmed by the vol 
ume of water, the water will 
scel̂  the path of least resist uice 

"lliere's not much you can do 
about that," 0*Donnell said 

O'Donnell said street ,crews 
were out in force to ck^d with 
any problems tliat miglil anse 

"We're going to do the bL<.t we 
can," he said. 

O'Donnell reminds motonsts 
that, when approaching a t r ^ i c 
light diat is fla:ihing yellow to 
proceeB through the inlcr>cctiori 
widi caution. Cmss irdtfic at 
such an intersccuun will hdvc a 
flashing red liglit to IK litJtLd 
as a stop sign; approach_ slop 

yidd 10 Diffic whh ttw 
» ty tod pracMd u l y f 
todiibO , ' 

C4mb-id|e fiiefiihie 
ht.\> 1\fldt|Bvte> lAeni 
e^eiina mDOAdini 
^•Ui in a ipan of nn 
cikKhodh, , 

At 3 09 ]pml ao ; 
A\enue womai npottfi 
m du basemen^ of he 
Firenghurs reponedly 
an elditnc appliance ( 
pulled a torched elê  
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yesville copes with high waii 
JOHWE 

CONCORD — 
^ffidals here were.a^-
fir usa^ to omserve 
i through today as 
aters rose around the 
Watn* treatment plant 
day n i ^ t ' 
vhile, CEood (voblems 
Village of Byesville 
irimal last n i ^ t 
illage of New Concord 
problKTi with its water 
day, hut officials want-
ptepared for an emer-

md wrat ^Jdng resi-
c^nseive water, 
lal Weather Service 
last night indicated that 
I as 8 inches of min had 
n New Concord since 

iving water escaped 
itinks and encroached 

M scHTK roadways. Officials go to Marie Chandler; superin-
had closed a Wretch of Route' 
40 east of die village befoe 5 ° 
pjn. Wednesday and offickls 
of the East Muskingum Local 
School District h a d d c c i ^ to 
delay the start of school today 
by two hours. 

To the' southeast, Byesville 
Mayor Don Gadd said last 
night that flooding - in and 
around Byesville was mini-
loai. 

"There was no flooding on 
Main and Second streets," 
fiadd said. "There was some 
water on pah of Peters Street 
in the low-lying area. 

**! was worried about the 
downtown because, in the 
past, it seemed like, if we got a 
sprinkle, we had flooding in 
die downtown 

Gadd said much of the credit 
for the imflooded streets could 

tendeni of the' Sevver 
Department, and his wofkers. 

"Scmie of that," Gadd said, 
"is the result of what Marit has 
been doing to gel the stwro 
drains out of the sanitaiy sew«' 
system." 

Some high watfcr was in low 
lying areas aroimd die village, 
Gadd said 

Part of Byesville Road was 
flooded, he said, and there was 
some flooding in Uie Stop 9 
area along the run that crosses 
Southgate Road near the Hi Li 
Club. Pari of the annex -build
ing to the Stop 9 Church of 
Christ was flooded, Gadd said, 

A little further afield. Morgan 
Coimty had massive flooding 
and evacuations were taking 
place Reports lliursday indi
cated thai the coimty was 
under a Leve) 2 alert 
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Carol Ringer/Tht Dally 
Water backed up onto Main Avenue near Fourth Street in Byesville 1\cdiicsiitiv*. '-
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Village's new water pl| 
nearly ready to go, was 
born out of 1998 flood 
J O H N LOWE 

THE DAILY JEFFERSONIAN 

BYESVILLE — TIK start of, 
operations at the new Byesville 
waur liCdUncnt plant should get 
under way on Nov 4, Mayor 
Don Gadd told council during its 
regular meebng Wednesday. 

That will put the viUage bcfon: 
tlie wuv of d Nov. 7 deadlme set 
by the Ohio Environmental 
Ftotection Agency 

The village chose Nov. ,4 
because it is the buthduy of the 
late HowanJ Wctrler on intUicp 
tial force in the Instor^ ul IhL vil
lage's utiliiv d pirtmintH I he 
new plant will he nnined the 
Wet7ler-Hiviik W iierTn.iilmcnt 
Plant m In mor of Wit/lcr and 

.DA 1 l-liyieb aiit.«lliLt turnici 
WHU r supenntcndrnt 

— liLjUii i i l Ih i l V, 

and upî radc^ol tlic 
iiiLm pl ml > • f 

Rdtlu- III m iiii.n.l> 
new re^uiremei^ 
Louiilil Llili^ vtira 

wbi 
viihge ahead*^^* 

'-'-''—aaios''''*' w iter stanc 
vonic 

(fddd n-portcd that crcw<i start' 
cd the water piunps at the ncW'/iag^SLwHU^xw; 
plin*hs»wcek . ' *' ^Jiindtc'^'ngctiti 

"We filled up the aerator^ in im 
time flat" Gadd said " And the 
rcLusLrv iinio tor thi. wclK w K 
20 ^ew)iids " 

111 oihtr winds It took oniv 20 
seconds tor die water ICVLI in the 
new wells to n.ttini tn niinnil 
after the welU suppUcd the thou 
saiidji nf gallons of water needed' 
to fill the aerators ' 

"Our mom guii]" Gddd said "is> ^ 
to turn water through thit phce , 
Then we can fliii^^h up die ftos 
meUe| wuk at tlit iicw plant" 

Gadds report came is Meidv •DiSviKSUitl 
rain drcnLhcd (IM villa^i. miuh Rescuerl^il 
IS It hid done dunn|; the summer ' ^ tu i dSjAS 
of N ^ when"Xontdniindiid - J t ) , ^ , ^ 
water from t*'i'-|>t**rd*'noiJ£l^i^^J'^jJ^ , 
diLH, mfillralcd a w'l (I m-ar Wdtcf^j;g£^^£^i{ 
Plant 2 olt VocatinnalfHtiafi -̂ ^ 
. Ihdl, n u i d / l c d ' l ^ t K & j i ^ 
Env irunmental ^ ^ * ' ^ — " " ^ 

ilî Ldtx-Me^hnnlnpr 
trinrai -s^^thTt'Wbi 

ahead''^ 
1iin3ai9^| 

AmoW^hi:r 'i .h 

.-** ys^v/p^s^j 



S p e c ^ fioodiiig :w^ reported oii Routes 285 
imr thof Sarahsviiie. Route ^46 in fenfRdo 
1!bwttsik^ Route 147, -260,, Route 821 in t b a l 
Ric^e, Ava. Belie \ ^ e y and the Maple Heighte 
area. Rooding was also repented in the low 
areas of Route 564. 

In thet Village of Caldvveil high water was 
reported <m die southern portion of West Street, 
OUve •Street and Route 321, as of Wednesday 
evenii^. Water in the Caldwell area was contin
uing to rise as jof 11 p.m. 

nsmg, - ' \ ^ ' , 
Hie ^tb^rifTs DfTice received addibonalVeports 

at 8:15 pjm. mdicating ^am two tp thise addi* 
tional inches of r^n were expected lo &U over 
NoUe County during the nighttiine hours Atthe 
time of the 8 IS report, offiaalsstatedfiXHnfour 
to six inches of ram had fallen on the county 
during the^torm 

A& of 10 p r a . Wednesday, no injuries had 
t>een reported 

As of 3 p.i&. Wednnday, Robins' Ridge Golf Course near Seneca Lake 1 
^^olfers as rains from tropical depression Frances covered the area. 

a water hazard for 

gnnolinom ^TTM^TSW 

^ . - ^ S ^ ' • • ' ' . , . 

ite--

NoU^ CouMr ShnHTi OlIlN u d Bdle V d l ^ l 
146anll47iwwawNobkUnlSclHMil1)bMi«'C^^ _, 
crenee IDA Mrudcd molorisl wlio wuriiAcin^i&>finml 
]4«. ' ' ^ ^ , ' 5 L / f f 3 

V^at to d r 
vourhouse:̂ ! 
G R E Q PARKS 
TH&JEFf^ERSONIAN 

Stay calm. 
Suysafe. . 
If your twose was flooded and your piopLCty 

suff^ied dtinage, ]t*s m^ioitant to get to work is 
soon aj possfl>le to protect your health and pie 
vent fturdwr danuige to your bLloiigings 

The Federal Emergcnby Management Agencv 
and NQtioaial Flood Insurance Program offer 
these instnictions 

• If yoiff htnhe has suiTeied damage, call Ihi 
ageiit who handle^ your flood insurance to lile a 
claim. If you are unable to stay in your home 
make sure to ^ y where >ou (.an be n-atJied 

" To make^ing vour claim casicTi take pluKos 
of any w f ^ in the house and tave damaged per 
sonali»oper^ If necessary place these items 
outside die tioniL An insuranct. adjuster will 
heed to see what s tiecn damaged in order to 
process your claim 

• C b e ^ for situetural damage before re-enter 
ing your bOTie Don't go in if ttiere is a chance of 
the building collapsing 

Stadeats hi Ae Nd)te Local School District WOT disn^Bsed euiy Wednetd^ 
tropiciil dqiresskKi Frances begw Its dc^ige. As (^ 6 pJU. Wednesday, the intersection of Routes 
14$mad ̂ ^ was ^osedfnKQ the heavy rain. 

"•Upotf^ 
inatches/c^tiiBittr^^ 
s&nc£ga4nu\ ^ettnippcii 
or hear hisbiiigr^open a w 
iind call dia gah cxMnpaTiy 
home • % - ^ 5 

• Keep power ofi umd f 
inspected your systpin>-f<n 

• C heck lor sewage' and 
>oii su^pcLt damage, jivo 
diu tap ontl tall a plumbL 

" fhrow away any food 
f oixls — llilil Ifas eQmc \\ 
lere V ' 

•Aintil ktcal AiiiAoriiics 
p!\ to Iw sifc, boilfwater 
preparation ji > 

• Moke sure tô Tdllow li 
ordinances whin ivbuildi 
nuteritds and tcehniqucs 
fmm fuiure flood datnai; 

• Salvage watu damagi 
phouigraphb «ilh lestota 
wirv store or other eitpe 

doing Local Red Cross 
part to help victims in 

TherH were 11'^ openWi 
200000 people':MOI^ I 
and snuckii have becnfsi 

Hie Ohio Hdls chapter ot the Amencan Ked 
Cross IS dou^ ihtir part in hclpuig to bnng aid to 
the victuns of hurricanes Chariic and Frances 

Currently* four volunteers from the chapter are 
m Florida helping with the most massive disaster 
rehef effoit for the Red Cross while another five 
are on stand-by waiting foe their call out assign 
hunts. 

"Our volimtccrs arc wonderful ' said Debbie 
Blessing of the chapter When called to go to 
Flonda all were on their way wiUiin 24 lioui^ 1 or 
one volunteer thi« is his first major disaster 
assignment But just hke the thousands ot other 
Red Cross volunteers he went {tlth^mrTiesit^tion 
to do what he was trained for Helping people dur 
mg a disaster. 

As of M(mdav the figures were staggering 

Heavy rains pummel southeas| j^tiio 
A 65 year old n u n ^ ' ^ i ^ ' h i s , 

landlord pump water outjOCjai 
baseiAent in Lambndgfc itli«_ 
an apparent ^ helan ^ ^ a ^ i ^ 
Wednesday, Brockwell ^ itvL ^ 
John McCance 65v'was][!Ci 
dead'by the londlorctiD^r^^' 
Icit him alone for aboi^fl'min' 

hurricanes '̂  ^ ' ' 
' Ked Cross vnli 

beginning and'willicoh 
with tr\mg to rehGifd th 
"Thc&c humcaneslhi^' 
into the Uvt& of duniMn 

All American ^£d'^tft 
free, made possible by 
time and^moiicyjroifl 
Fin iru lal assistance /'nro 
Ohm Hills chipte&'t^tf^ 
0H4T'2s ^ . r ^ 

Call du Lhaplcr,fiou& 

BY TH£ ASSOCUTED 

Many schools and roads 
zncluihng an laterklale were 
closed m cahterii Ohio on 
Thursday After remnants of 
Hnnicaoe ]Ê ancch dumped up lo 
seven inches of nun forcing 
cvacuatioaB and conlnbutiog to 
at least swo deaths 

Officials r^oiied thai the ram 
was ttqienng off and some flood 

me, •" t^^ ^ 
The man had no hiit̂ yf̂ '̂ 

heartprclblcms BfodEvrq" 
*Tt waa^bni j a t J 

Where'the stnST^ 

watenvetebeguuuBgtoiooedc' (hdng and Tjd] 
as die uncins moved t » to Cbe ™ ^ 
NonheasLHdwever.^riyBniiii(eh!^ ^ \ 

to cflphmw 
h a ^ i — a a . J ^ . J 
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lood day! 
isfde value 
rhe following inserts are 
eluded in The Jeffersonian 
day (' denotes in zoned 
easonly): J.C. Penney,' 
»ars. 

(leather 
(Mostly sunny Saturday with 
ghs around 80. Light and 
iriable winds. Details on 
igeA-12. 

Joncert 
rhe Cambridge City Band 
\\\ close its 2004 Concert In 
e Park series Sunday by 
jsting the Greater 
olumbus Community Band, 
"le 3 p.m. joint concert will 
3 in the large pavilion of 
ambridge City Park, where 
3th bands will play sepa-
itefy and then jointly. 
rhe Cambridge City Band, 
Its 163rd year of service to 

.e area, is the oldest com-
lunity band in Ohio and the 
0 oldesr in the United 
tales, 
Theme for 2004 is "Love of 
Lady in salute to 30 years 
f women-being cast mam-
ers of the band. Peggy 
Ingor of Indian Camp has 
3 yofirs, most years as a 
9^ rt^emtjer and fria board 
Mnjstees. 
Everyone is Invited to 
ttend this finaf, free concert 
\ the park. 

^lean Sweep 
C^ration Clean Sweep 
cheduled for Saturday, 
lept. 25, sponsored by 
Cambridge Nfeiin Street, ts 
TOorganizatfon's or)ce-a- .'.; 
«ar offer lo locdl business^ 
s to have ydiffiteers clean' 
iJ în and arotmd t l ^ r stores 
- free ctfchax^, e x c ^ for,-
iURpte, Getwi^ ctearUng 

Mtchaal NsHsonmH 
Cambridge firen^ters and other emergency personnel remove Cambridge Health and Rehabilitation Center residents CnHil ^UL^ Creek \alle) D 
afternoon. 

County under state of emerge: 
RICK STILUON 
THE DAILY JEFFERSONIAN 

As flood waters begin to recede 
in pctttions of Guemsey County, 
local officials are awiitih^ word 
on federal tLs*,,!,taiiLC MI he p wrh 
the clean up tuid repair ot morv 
than $1 imLn'n in d.unjge whuli 
doesn't inc'ude personal pmpe'n 
damage. 

Guemsej CouiAv Lornmission 
ers signed a declaration >C5»eida\ 
declaring a s-taie of enwrgency in 
fee count\ t^iio Gov Bub i.ih 

IPYOtfMEEQ i..v'.;V' i ' . , , • ' • , '1- - '• . . y . i i c 

• flynR-JTlH PNloa OBtnitlment—OBUjaf 
- t^nsJwt v»irlMa>- Flra {MtNtfHwt^—• 

• CarlUdQB Ftre Deptrtmatt - 43a4bAr 

4431 

• •7T . f t ' ' ' M^^l^:^'&i^B ^ ^ ..cTi\.:k-i^ii^ 
t * ' " * * ^ r<lf i 
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Evacuations in Byesvill 

Wk̂ iMl FMison/Th* [}aliy J«n«f*ontan 
rycUsts hi Byesville found some fun in what others 
disaster Thursday. 

water at several MWCD 
prompts warnings 

/ILLS — Pounding rain that dumped nearly sevra inches 
t least one Muskingum Watershed Conservancy District 
sa this week has prompted MWCD ofBcials to urge boat 
owners to check on their equipment and for all residents 

:aution in and around the area's lakes, 
uced in eastern Ohio by the effects of Hurricane Frances 
ore in the southern United States has swollen six of the 
kes several feet above normal. Readings produced 
y the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers show that Atwood, 
'appan, Clendening. Pi»lraont and Seneca lakes all are 
al suiruner depth recordings. 
ID is urging "people who own boats, docks and/or camp-
:ated at any of these lakes to check on them as soon as pos-

,- Corps of Engineers officials said they do not expect the 
it until they have reached between 3 and 5 feet above nor-
r depth readings. 
ion has led to the closing of all three pubUc boat launch 
neca Lake located south of Cambridge, as well as reloca-
ping units at one of that l^e's campgrounds and at the 
is inside Tappan Lake Park in Harrison County; C^cials 
Lake Park said that more than 20 camping units were 
êas of higher ground Thursday after floodwateis covered 

ip areas. 
fficials said that public boat launch ramps would be closed 
ere ctmditions are considered unsafe to put boats into the 

isda> jftemoon Seneca I^ke was at nearly 5 feet above 
th conditions, l^esville Lake ui Carroll County was at 4 
lomial. actoiiluig to figures from the L) S. Anny Corps of 
Alwixxl. C lendenjng, l^ppan and Piedmont lakes were 
r slightl> above 3 tect above nonnal depth readings 

JOfWLOWE 
THE DAILY JEFFgRSONtAM 

PYESVELLE — Evacuations 
and a dramatic rescue ctiaracter-
izcd a day in the village quite 
different from Wednesday nighl. 

Rising water Thursday flooded 
homes on the cast side as resi
dents of Peters Street evacuated. 
Mayor Don Gadd said. . 

"The people' went to shelters . 
and to the homes of friends and 
relatives. 

Meanwhile, an unknown man 
proved to be a. hero when he 
sayed the life of a boy on the 
south side of town. 

Apparently, some juveniles 
were riding bicycles through 
water on flooded M^elta Road 
when the current knocked a boy 
off of his bicycle, Gadd said. 

The boy was being swept into ' 
a culvert. 

"The only thing showing was 
his head and his hands," Gadd 
said. 

A man in a silver truck 
stopped, pulled the boy to safe
ty, got back into his tmck as 
Byesville firefighters were 
arriving and lef̂  the scene. 

"We don't know who hp was." 
Gadd said. "But. whoever it 
was, tell him we said, 
'Thanks.'" 

"That cu lv^ is about 700 feel 
Ibng. So, the boy would have 
drowned." 

Firefighters conducted several 
water rescues, Gadd said, mainr 
ly at Seneca Lane near "the 
Narrows" south of the village 
where Route 821 also was 
flooded.; : ; 

Firefighters, village empI6y-̂  
ees and the aiJmmii>tration were 
al! over the village 'ITiursday 
trying to contain or ijmiimize 
the effcLLs of wateriflhe^Siwd 
thought they had unaer control 

This area of Bves^ille went under early In the day Thursday 

the night hcfore 
Gadd sent Water Depanmcnt 

cmplo>i.es lo Cambridge 
Thursday moming to get 20U 
emp^i hurhip teed bags at 
Green Valley Co op 

He and Uie i.KV,i> spenl Ihc 
monung filluig llit. bags dnd 
t̂dLking them at dwirs of some 

VTam Street homes and busi
nesses 

''We had akiul 20 homes Uiat 
flooded out,'* Gadd laid 

All ot the village utilities were 
iUU operational Thursday after
noon dnd Ihc water department 
pumped an extra h ^ nullton 
giillons of ^^ulê  into the new 
plant as a precaution, Gadd said 

At 2 p m, Gadd went to die 
v^astcwater tredtuient plant lo 
survey the situation 

The water level was still about 
3 feet below the top of the dike 
around the plant , 

ad the village not ,idded^5 

feel to the height of 'li_ dikt 
after die record flood of 'QIJ, die 
plant would have been floudul 
Thursday 

Gadd was mystified by thL 
sudden nsc in flood water 

"h was fine unbl 3 ^0 iht^ 
moming," he said on Thursdav 
'Then,-almost on the dot ii 
started gomg up a foot an huui 

"We had the water out Now 
it's backing up Where ii s com 
ing from, [ don't know' 

But, if Gadd was p^/zlLd, hi. 
also was angry 

"We did everythmg v,t ^ould 
to keep the water out,* he said 

But lis ^^e Ihursdav uas 
relentless 

Gadd biehcvLs it didn I hjvi. tii 
be diat wa> In 200^ 1IL ULVCI-
opcd and jhdFcd widi slate and 
federal otticials a plan he 
believes would have kept ihi't 
flood out of lt\e';\ille 

IMIsonmwMlyJtn 

basins and Vtctlvds to 
aloD^ Wills Creek Soi 
Liah hdd called his pluii 
but, to this point noil 
come of It 

Gadd would like citi 
the village ind ot Ciiml 
wnu; to llieir alak Jiul 
legislalor^ and t« tlie 
Fmergenc) Miui 
Aguu\ / 

He wonts people to i 
actiun be takciron his f 

Lvervone said; Thai 
tlood wuut happen agii 

If vkc had hjtf'ihosc 
IK Slid, Kcvtouldnlh 
Jhisnghtnon , "i^^^^ 

It s Liinc -wĉ  sidt^ 
some kind uf pn,vcAuti| 
urc instead of juM*^6it 
this happens^a^flin"^'^ 

' I said-mdnesd&y^ 
we Urcrc^ttu^wdivinn 

\^ere 
That plan called for floOd 

Caldwell Village Hall open; cleanup^^^J 
KEVIN MACRI ^ """^^ ̂ ^ *^"^ **̂ "*̂  -*°*'^^ ** ̂ ^ -
C A L O W E U B 'IFHI 

(.r all of diL cquipnioit Ivid beoi^ f ^ 
r movfti pnor to Ote flood'cl . .VS/ too^ 

R icI^-bff^udtlieCaldw'a'Swcf:. ' " CALD^^hLt — i.\ iiiin) up 
was the () ̂ ki < > uij n i a r ^ \ 'Pi'uit hii(l daitia^ Hdifi^^'llM' 
It rSoh L t JU- \ in the attcmijUi pljiii rLnuins in'V}pd̂ ii< 
nt tmp,.M d p-x*;, on Frintcs 
will h dJinptJ " 1/2 iiiwhĉ  of 
n n I- r\Ji-di*<i ll i < I'llwell 
Scihcrl^ani 

TiiCilJ^cM V ill Hwhjil remains 
l"ir hi nf>( I- 11 *.n Iv rrf ihu 

Caldwell r SfeWî  
Supenntendenc Johh'-
Opcmior Lany Riip^1:5aid 
did not'en&r Bctunai|£i^^ 
ificn 

•'" ' * A * ' 
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MJcf̂ aei NeJfsonrrhG D«/(y Jeffersonian 
inning, Cambridge Chy StrvL-t Department roremaii, 
h i ^ water sign* and barricades to higher ground a* 

xintinMed lo rise on VViils (reck \alley Prive Thursday. 

w-ft 

(H ^^^^.% I :, r j}:^ 
Michael Neiison/The Daily Jeffersonian 

cr^^ps up on The Salvation \rniv building on Dewe\ 
' Thursdas 

mchaal NeltsorbThe Oil'y 
A car sits In flood waters next to Interstate 77 near Byesville Thursday morrUng. 

High water forces evacuatic 
RICK STILLION 
THE DAI IV JEFFEBSONIftN 

Numerous roadways in 
Gue]ms\ County remained 
closed early Fnday due to flood 
waters and Wills Creek nas not 
expected to crest tn the 
Cambndge area until later m the 
da) 

Officials forecast Wills Creek 
would crest at 25 feet late 
Fnday morning, leaving nunier 

Michael Neitson/The DaHy jeffersonian 
waters along Route 209 near Mr G's If 

Dunty under a 
ate of emergenjcy 

for theftrtsttolravef ilMigfciBfi^' 

officers and other ernergency 
response personnel from 
Guemsey and sgrroiinding 
counties reportedly evacuated 
S4 residents from the Victonan 
Oaks Thursday using sm^ll 
boats and ropes to traverse a 
flooded Wilis Creek Valley 
Drive just west of the new 
bndge off Old 21 Road 

Critical care patients from 
Cambndge Health and 
Rehabilitation Center and local 
residents of Wills Creek Valley 

were also evacuated, 
some residents 

fEftSmpageArl 
hng to the National 
cr Service and Guernsey 
y Emergency 
>^«ii^nlA Ap«»n<*v T>ir*tfrrtr 

ous roadways and bridges under 
Wdtei The 25-toof>igt is 10 ^Dnve 
feet abo\e the^ood stagbsli^^^'i'though 
Wills Creek ^ the Campbell remained in lluirl imi s 
A\enue gage station "There was i u i Ju"" J J C-

The high water conditions to those facdi n.*-11 i». iJtii L--
reporredh forced the eiacua^on but people WI-IL t . a u n cu J> J 
of multiple resideuUai areas m precauuonar) uaiuiL aid 
the Cambndge area Thursday, C5erry Bi^kn^r d '.u't i ' iJi. 
including the city's west side, GuemseyJ^Cuui t l-nur—ii \ 
WilU Creek Valley Drive and -* Management A Btic Thui.in 
.CBjrtTTUXV^Aiddltt^ttiil^tJ '̂  " '^ '^ '^ ll<i>ni « £ ^ l t & i «• nrinnl^.-u.nn' 

gency 
Assisting with the patienis 

were crews from [Jimd 
Ambuldnce, New Concord 1 MS 
and Newcomers' >̂  i 
Emergency Rc;>cue Squad 

Authoniies closed both \\iil 
Creek Valley Drive apd ili 
bndge on fcrghth Streel ' 'oid 
Thursday atter bodi rodd • ivs 
bcLanie flooded. 

The ^ Guernsey CojJt , 
Highway Department c ' o id 
Martha Koad Thursday ̂ a'/f''i i 
bndge was dajnf^ged'by fl »• 1-
ina The road will jemainc*" cd 
*" I M IT i c n n i « l ^ t d tifiiii y 

In I I"' '1 ^ 1̂  ipJ ' to 
list r>* rt III ^liiMli^ Xii ' in dji.1 

Ciit-nsc^ f nuhtv jiiLiiii N.^*J- 'A" 
(mic- I s 1(1 stiiL Ruuit«r,S5ji'*g' 
2S^ Mft 20S Tjf 'JOs h^^ - (jtST-• ' 
W 1 ft'2 "s l̂ ZU'.^iiiit.c 
i\ IO incliip rn iJ> Fl-} d Slreri^ 
H^id BfeiL' Po^J*B„-h^•^ 

Hinii'li id K a. 
I' id IIIIULC Mill 

K •.d ( >icnil h 
L MM R^ul F.rll 
I ii'li Ro d ^I-nn 
1 ri.(.di ri 'Kdi I 
R .d Gi(._ili 
M n ll 'in R u„ Iki 

\ i f i I J . I F i ' i ' , 

I ii.i 11 R. d 'I 
Mn Ml r l l 0 I 
f>li 21 P'.KI nJd 
oiti N 11 'All } r 

Kifd Pli.lhp' *R 

M'n.l\Vii^VefiT 

'^hLMfrs.^iiiipysj( 
» 

m 

norihem piri of the county," 
•jwd George: We are starting to 
!uok û 'he edstem ard "^outh-
edstem regioii-i ot the county 

iiem^s^ytffe c penp'̂  T̂ ouid be 
1: Bti 

wt > ^-^^M 
Ii > > 

!.**! 
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eeks federal 
or flo<Kl vicdmsr 
IINOTON, D C — 
ng Governor Taft's 
emem Thursday, that he • 
•lanng a st%te of cnier-
for several counties 
by recent tlooding, U.S. 

Bob ' Ney., -R-Si. 
tie, announced Friday 
has directly petitioned 

It Bush for a similar fed-
vciariition that would 
lesc ooumies to obtain 
lisisiance. 

rote: °1 am requesting that 
ride federal assistance to 
;e counties restore servic--
ipair damages." 

ork Lake 
jrk'Lake will be closed 
through Sunday to all 

•aft except doc)c holders 
ig. their water craft. This 
urc safely to persons and 

> regarding the openmg 
ike to water craft will be 
1 when they becomes 
e. 

ter loans 
)NNELSVILLE — 

Bank has developed a 
loan program to assist 

who have experienced 
;ue to damages from the 
of the recent rains and 
,ter 
jrposc of the program is 
tiuc investing in the local 
nities and help those in 
aickly deal with unex-
osses. 
;s Bank is allotting a 
$250,000 throughout its 

; to make loans lo indi-
that- have losses related 

isaster. The unsecured 
are being offered at 
rates with a maximum 
lount of $5,000 for those 
jals who qualify. 
: are available though 
) Bank Individuals-
*; more mformation can 

their local Red Cros*s 
Community Action 

for more information, or 
Dples Bank directly a t l -
4 6123" ^ ^ 

out of water 
Cambrtdge-Ou emsey 
ffealtft Department 

County ready with funding help for flood viclj 
Troy McCoUisier, director of the Guernsey Cwinty 

Ctepartmcm of Job and Family Services, said Friday that 
addjtxonal funds from the,state are available to assist-
victims of recent flooding in Guernsey County. 

The funds wiU be distributed through two programs, 
the l~iTsi providing up to $750 pes household for the eld
erly, denn(;d as persons 55 years of age and older. 

The maximum possible disbursement for this program 

through,thc state is S25.0O0 
Under the seccind program, u maximum of $t>SOO 

additiotiftl Tempoiary AssjNiarice for Needy I>nmiltcs 
funds is ava i l^ te to quahfymg households responsible-

, for children^and havmg income less thun 200 percent of 
the federal povert> I*^el 

The programs co\t.r strxictura! damage to homes and 
losses of clolhint and niaior appliances, umong others 

Anphcuiii<i must provide vahdaiiun of their) 
1 hft duadime tor botli progrim^ i", Oct S 

Neal Muidock &t432 2^81 i-xr 2212 JI G U 
432-2381 exl. 2289 for more mronputmn 

OCDJFS hours an, vcckdi>s, ^ 1 0 ini 
MtColhstcr said hours o.asrdt ihe reguliir ->( 
may b& tura i tg^ , 

Til iTrtt iSjui' SO I UUSCH'JIJS in. btin^ as 

Officials hopefiilli 
water at MWCD 
lakes will crest see 

SENEC \M1 I F -
indication i i 
high *. l ie 1 
Musk 111 J.U II 
Coiiser'V ML D in 

1 

- l l |l (.MTlt 
r w llu 

s^Vwtd 
\\ ti,r%h il 

1 I ll I kt 
I s lid IV I 

Michael Nellson/Ttie Dally iletfersonlan 
Workers carry out flooded kerns Trom the Chrysler sho>vnMHn of Dunning Motors on Route 209 
Saturday afternoon. The building had scvLral feet of water inside. 

What are you to do with flood 
contaminated food and water? 

IS expect 
Sundny 

pffiLidK flu II till, t S \ n n 
Corps ol 1 1̂ 1 I I I ' nil i d 
tbe MW( n II l i i l i v Ihil (III 
expect thi - p i ri^ n <L| th ' 
slow ov-i 'h<. ^ I- MJ I I'l 
lakes hii h u t t h ihi m 11^ 
of Hum III I I i 111 fHii 

Poundiiir. I 111 I I I III p I 
several in 1 I r n i t i 
MWCD K^i ll U SLLI. I 
prumplti III 111 I iri I i 
and canip' r i ni rs t hi I • 
fheireqiiipm i [ n I i ill i 
dents ic i-x I I II I II 11 J 
around ll L tie i 1 ti. 

Most''' ' ill likt.3 IILLI 1 
Atwoot' 1 ' ' »l T*» 
Ckndeiiiii I u-di ml tn I 
Seneca— in h t in. in "* n I "" 
feet ab u n t ni ll u r MILI 
depth I idiii" ^^lll C u L t 

I rt. ll Cn h» 
MM ^ln^Uln t-CiinL <* 
1.1.1 Ixivu m r n i l i 

h i I ^ l i d ' n i r th 
ih ptsi U hoiir-i 1 
ti'Lhi II 

Itk %lll lU II his 
I nsji L o! l l ' *ir I 
liii I h r im| s I ^ 
Ith ll < s uilh n C 
(lUiiii^L Jnd* N n 

At 11 S Ti.lfK.-'lh n 
I I -lu l l lhi[ I 
_ uii<.'> u d r lIlL 
I III I I ipp n [ ll 
M iiii rn Counts 

Mnu vir miivi 
MII11 1 ihi^ VkCkci 
II I ki the l l ' 
PLK III r \ i A I H I 

11 ll I I Sc I.CV 

BETH GAYDOS 
OHIO STATE UNivERSiTY EXTENSIO'^ 

Since flood waters may carry "-ill riw sewage 
oil, or chemic^ wa.stes, salvaging foods that were 
flooded can he a major-concern Intci^tmal dis 
eases which cause dtarrhea and d> iicutcvy arc the 
most likely illnesses thai occur trom consuming 
flood contaminated tood Parasites and uiteslinal 
viruses are generally lo blame Wdtcrixime trans
mission of E coll, salnloneila, and shigella is also 

• a concern with contaminated water syilems 

Discard all foods packed in foil celluphanL, 
paper, cloth or cardboard thatiinve come into ton-
lact with flood waters. Even if the contents appear 
lo be dry. they may hot be safe 

Discard all^ flooded rrieats, fish poulirj, fn i 
fruits and vegetables as well a<; toods packagec i 

ing ion water imght look ^ 'o" aTB"unsure aboht the condition of any fo K1 
K 6 C - f t ^ for some k t d s , tow^«/way, ' . '^, , 
m i he dangerous," ther ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ' " ^ealed^rtighjL corrynercial m." 

the durdtiuii of llic flood, and whether or not the 
Hoixl water Loniaincd raw sewage or other con 
taminantN I nuts and vegetables thai were more 
than two weeks from matunly at the time of the 
flood mnj he safe to cat by Ihe time they are ready 
for harvest In the amount of time it takes the pro
duce to mature, there should be enough rain and 
clcdiismg to make them acceprahle But even 
ihgji. the prod'bL s u u l J K di M I I . L U I mJ 

fore Cl I 

I eaf\ \'bgaLab i I i l-"ii L jhKi^L and 
greens, f1esh> •._<- ibK t atuc i.utumtM.r, 
summer -squash p* pp i i . nd In r- fiTjiis *iri. 
highly suscepUbli l i b • k n lUoiiiiiiiuii lum It it 
nearly impossih >. i ri "• > 11 MHI re idui_ fimn 
thp Ie<>vps and i \ i '̂  nf iht prodiiLL Tlicj 

l u i l t h irVd ' 
R t ni •• i ih ' i hccis LITTOK m i pontof 

III (. *. h «.s »iil- nnds î outer skin^ ^Uth us, 
tCLp' I ' I VI ic ^qua*-!!'.UL Lss'Culnjniblc t o ' y \ * Gu8inbe| 

I n III IK I T'l^y nnht b? tliiiroii^hly Wnshefl. '^^**'^'^ 
Ill rubbed di-sirU.teJ rmb^d,-pctlLil and'^;^^Nogla?f! 

II j s f r o^M-M ^ l o dismt€C4^«'io*3;jjW*?*ial^'!16' 
t j ' Lt|HKii^un-.u.nitd household bfeilchiTn a g ^ 

u l M U held I 
\ I in iini ^ iiiird iv 

^^\^' i)isM A , 
lu I --ll htinrh rimj 

|( I ' l I ke* ^hni 
le^i. I Mde^J-jUn; 

._^ _ Iwiis iiiuidik. i^aiLr 

NEED HELP? HERE'S ytfHb'fTd 
People sepkinq issri- in e mn, 

contact Ife Hlr M g j j ^ ' i MOJ 
• ByebviiH P liuj p^uan-iHi 

— 685-?12i 
• Bynsvilif* VoUnropr Fire 

Departmsnt — e***! I f i l l 
• CalOAP' Firo '^Pr"'*n'"r^ 

732-2802 
• Unmtnjqfl Fi e Dopadmpnt—"5 

'V32-3r32 iron emergency , J 
• Cdmbndoo Pclicfl DpoHdmpnt-yj 

— 1 ja - ^4 i ; • ^ f ^ •* ' 
• Cambndgfi po^^of t te"?] .^ 

HiahAax,Patro — 4,"^9^38$s^ 
* • Ca'nb'Viqa^ A T ^ f J i y * 
fteajlij Dopartr^en* ^ 4 3 ^ J " 

U;inngeifiom^ ** 

Jni^ed'^rjnbulal 

- Uniidd^irbpiai 
iC^Tibndge' — % ^ 
vFor PHPrV" ' ' ! ^ ^ 

S'^cansis.safefor^^sfc^riSDectlcahsanddistard iii^ I t n o l v^^te- ininfietsine^tliem.fori'l^-^i^OMiAi 
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Od day! 
ide value 
following Inserts are 
Isd In The Jeffersonian 
{* denotes in zoned 
only): Pizza Hut, J.C. 

&y, ' plus 1 Pizza. 

lather 
Jdy Friday with heavy 
kely. Highs in the lower 
^lortheast winds 10 to 
ah., Chance of rain 70 
mi Details on page A-

spial Sing 
16th annual Fall Gospel 

Will begin today and 
w e through Saturday at 
^ Valley-Gampgojund 
3ospel music will resume 
2t and continue 

'gh Sept. 25, ' 
» of the largest'gospel 
t In Ohio, Ihe F ^ Gospel 
features free adrriisslon 
# a s f^ndicap parkingr. 
*uttte sifvfce. ' , " 
Ifltljent will fadjeatured 
'̂(begiOKiIngatep.fn.. -

^H4'at5)andlfie^. <., 

RICK STILLION 
THE DAILY JEFFERSONIAN 

Federal Emergency 
Management Agency officials 
were expected to visit Guemsey 

Noble 
County 
prepares 
for Ivan 
KEVIN MACRI 
C A L P W E U BUBEAU 

BELLE VALLEY — Officials 
in Noble County aie bracing for 
the worst while hoping for the 
best 

Officials from^-alLreaches of 
the county — from villages 
townships and fire departments 
to school distncts, county Com
missioners and ambulance serv
ices — gathered Wednesday to 
discuss a plan of action zt 
Humcane Wan made landfall 
and started its oorthwiud mar^h 
from the Gulf of Mexico. 

As of Wednesday evening, said 
Noble County Emergency 
Management Agencj'_&irector 

,Chasity Schmelzenbadh/ the 
^ National Weather«iSei|ic&--was 
'predicting Hmrtcafc'Iypty^otild 

County Thursdav tn as-̂ ess flood 
damage in prtparation for 
declaring j federal sta'e of 
emergtiKy that would pave the 
Aa) for locil tLSidci Is lo 

receive assistance 
We hdVe been waiting for 

FEMA to come and complete 
the prehifljnaiy damage assess 
ment and thcv are Loming 

tOtllV u) (|i|tTSe^ (il'TV 
LM\D i i . . ^ io i G u i ^ BLLkiKr 

^ i.*i> - ' In \ \ \ . u \ r 'Lri l 
ii'Si i iK ' NOIM iKer n i i j t'. 
lliLl 1 1 I t I ipk t t ul 4L ^ )I )l>t 

Kts nhi.rf'tliu I' Ji II 
unde ItollMcpcnJ 

srttin \\v,ckiiiw --I 
Ic tfcd t 

kin î-f nMStLrcd 
s'!ist mce ' ' i^t 
B'll'iK.i Njil rAc 

(.II^ 1I)*7U ti.i.nit. 
M MA'ttill^^lilf 
loc il tî <.iii mLC fit 
iinrt , * \*" 

The Morf thiB 
T(ri . \*(Ui ' i i fnf ' r f 

To*nsl«fi'A?rd/rtic 
prnttdrhSrf^FM 

il aopruDrjdtJCiiit 

/ '"fil- . ' tccci^in f - n *i 
Uvmn m 

Cliff Mitchell, 21, front, amhu ii| 
from rensacola Bay is churni • < 
and the (lorida panhandle. 

I f P ^1- jt btil PaterBburg T I I I M I , bouglts R< CHHbrd) 
I H i l t u ^^ldlHs 11% Hhil fisUnx WaysidL^Parit^as MsJ^~ 

l l II > i i i l I l l i i I nm l^dn0*pnnfachc(II$iLsau>la.7niS 

'•^H^e >.flc*Mn( 
, said tnldil^Hoc^ 

|eftiJcsVinL^wu|^ 

l-iiS§Sgi^^^^^ 
l i ^ i t > K m r « « 

l i ^ i P S w i ^ j t r 

MnuiJitasMui 
' I ff SH »!<*-̂  Ml ^V\ — 

Hull" V" I J- ITH ( 2 ^io"e 
»inv Ih t di I*}- M(d f 
IV , I <ri d d to 
tn •* rt I |i fl iiin-*i < I 
* n. I 1 n 1 1 I I ' r f ) 

Cia-.i le li^r.s Aio^p^'i ' a U ^ i ^ T h & a j t f j 
tnchtcnmc nighl in sheiiers,dnd^, oak«tree^i^{,d| 
YH rd d np h irc*. Wf/c cncr^ ^ S f i t ^ ^SIT* '^^ 
I L T'lursdiv mom i i g ' ^ ' ' l i p d 5 h ^ y i m ^ 
in it hnif M I".'not inc cat Stp)!3*VniSnalPiiI 
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FEMA weigM #ur dama^ 
RICK STILUON 
THE DAILV JEFFERSONIAN 

Now that the Federal 
Emergency Management 
Agency has completed prelimi
nary damage assessments in 
Guenisey County, the "waiting 
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d day! 
Je value 
lowing inserts are 
I in The Jeffersonian 
denotes in zoned 
ily): * Sears. 84 
R.E. Monthly. 

1. 

ther 
cloudy Saturday with 
ound 70. Detaite on 
12. 

litsas 
embered 
sey County commis^-
said they wilt have 
at haff staff at the 
usein memory of 
Sranitsas, former 
sioner who passed 
unday. 

d-raiser 
iif 1641 Knights of 
us members will sell 
or the Ohio State 
Knights of Columbus-
lanttes Foundation 
Fnday and Saturday 
neck's and Wat Mart 

erweights 
sey County Historical 
is selling paper 
d^jctlng the former 

High School, Central 
School dnd 
dge High School. 
are $10 each and may 
tiased.al'The Taste 
" or the Guernsey. 

game • has begun as federal 
authorities tabulate damages to 
determine if Ohio -r- including 
Guernsey and Noble counties •— 
is eligible for federal assistance. 
, "What we do now is wait,"' 
said Guemsey County EMA 
Director Gerry Beckner. "They 

have completed the pi^imiriary 
damage tissessmeai$ attd now 
they will detennine if the stale 
receives a declaralloh and what 
counties are ehgible.^d, Owy 
will do that at their own pace " 

Beckner said ihe state has 
declared a slate, of emereehcy m 

11 Lc iintus Ml the 4ukti of 
fl. \ax (lonJing, all of v^hii-h 
b'i\L rn \K asK<<̂ ed tvforc a 
MiiiL dLtliiidiitm (.an be made by 
f..](iiil oiticiaK 

All At f-iin kll iXHiplL IS IKL 
in'o. lAUor *"H h*. m^de *\A\\ 
ili't tluough the local media 

— Saan ScotlniM Dally Mftraonlsn 
The Hall of Champions at the Guernsey Counfy Fairym^ iFllled t» Utc rafters on Thursday during Ih? Junior Fair I Ivi^slock Sulc 
Inside the ring, Kayla King leaids ^er grand chaioipiott market steer around while the bidding tuki't plaic 

Junior Fair sale 
hits a new record :̂™Ŝ  

sources as KQM. <IS 
lu' :iiid I k ^ n e r 
kium whi,n ^^K, v. 
pLoplL nlcdfto ket 
the piper an<\.h.^ci 
radio |n gu ' lhe i 
ihcj n « d »^»• 

That tnformatiuu i 
toll free PEMAlclcj 
berTorcgistet^forflf 
assi&tancd v ' . ^ 

Wc don't ha^eth*. 
tOLulU\«>body wl 
hab damai^c. anji thi 
people «ith dcinai 
don I knciv ab< 
BLc^nur So H is 
[hit people chi.tk 
m di \ tor the mtorr 

Bi.ckiiu bald lo>. 
can ptt Ihi. proLLŝ  
assisLinu. it iitcd b' 
tlicir in^iirance con 
reqnircincrit t j 11 ^ 

F\ciiitttic\doifi 
insurance* *thcy nei 
claim ^ith'tbc insi 
pany uhcrcMhc\ 
homco*npfs5 pol 
BcwktKr.*"Ojve of 
W N U ^ i l l a k f o i 
ktti.rln)mtbi.irtn 
pinv •*' 

If tliev gct'rhai i 
LdllOW thi,s Ailti 
p ired ifllce tht> FF 
lion process li" 
Bivknci^'i ' 

\N tht rain fn 
'nints of HuriKa^e 
into Wi l l i isttn? 

RICK STILUON 
T H E DAILY ,1 I I I î '̂ t NI*N 

OLD WASllistilO"^ - Ul cp. diUi.'lucaibey CQuni\ lunior, 
J i i r Livestock Sale iliursday ihLllod o u u u a c o ^ U S A S S ttSM? 
^r t . sitfii^hs-Thi pttivinus n.tord orS226929 Sfiri i M l . ^ * W 

Wn\fri Ui belt \ ohU'' ..id tountv^lsurfi- "afld !ftng-Bt!fc*« 
sii^p.iner fli- ^ole •'tiKial Jiiu CaliwtU, foIlorfJil|;Uv "* 

A n ve else *n thi % \l "i WW in ;i oa P*ISP that dinoiint <̂ riLchfr)f̂  
vhnii of a tniu period t T ths kid^ ot fniemse> C d i i R u ^ ^ ^ 
i»iuUto,thLi.n(,r\,i\ nfUi-bJ^eV'^,- ' ' V . - S ^ ' ^ r . 

In 2003; JI n n- 1 irLive to,.f Sile iHiVcrs^pcfiLi 



IWfd victory. 

The Kovels talk about 
political m^me^biiia 
and other stuff of 
interest. 

BUSINESS, 0-2 
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devalue _ 
oUowing inserts, 
^g Parade Magazine, 
-cotor comics and tele-
guide, are irwluded in 
inday Jeffersonian 
* denotes in zoned 
3nly): ' Food Center, 
imartSource, 
ok's, Carter Lumber, 
d, Kmart, J.C. Penney, 
i, Dell, Coconis 
re , ' The New 
'd Leader. 

ither 
/ today with highs in 
'er 70s. North winds 
5 mph. Clear tonight 
NS in the mid 40s. 
ast winds 5-to 1G rnph. 
on pass A-14 

id luncheon 
Tsey County 
llcan Women will host 
and salad luncheon 

^y. Sept. 24 from 11 
1̂ -30 p.m.-at First 
Mejhodist Church, 
Idge. 
ifomiation. caH 439-
r 432-9275. 

Iter side 
; i^OWN, Conn. (AP) 
iples wfth cold feet can 
ut of a^edding in one 
a Connecticut church. 
>hurch of Christ sits 
<onk Hill Road, strad-
le town line lor 
jwn and Stertmg. ifs 
I the New London 
-Windham County 

les have to ensure 
slarxlfng on the cor-
)e of ttte building dur-
weddlng ceremony so 
sy're In the town that 
tinetr marriage license. 
Ise the nftarriage Is 
aHy btntSr^, the Hev. 
BetdakL 
KXHxt3^ fs tietermined 
tniddie divklef in the 

First Frances, now Ivan; 
flood cleanup continues 
JOHN LOWE 
THE DAILY JEFFERSONIAN 

The remnants of Hurricane Ivan closed 
businesses, canceled events and spurred 
recommendations of evacuations-in vari
ous locations around Guemsey County. 

A personal tragedy and other dramas 
occurred during the flood. 

But the area was spared,the sort of 
flooding Hurricane Francis caused the 
week before. 

Officials at the Cambridge Water Plant 
reported 4.15 inches of rain fell during 
the period of the flood. Water was still 
rising al the plant al 7;30 p.m. Saturday 
but W^ter Pjiant personnel were unccrtaFn 
of flPh'Errflie water would crest. 

According lo the Web Site of the 
National Weather Service, Wills Creek 
was to crest at 2 a.m. this moming 
^Sunday) at 21.5 feel, or 6.5 feet over 
flood stage. 

The rainfall was far short of what feh 
the previous week, but it was enough to 
send water across roads and, among 
other things, disrupt the Guemsey 
County Fair. 

Waters began rising early Friday and, 
by 11:19 a.m.. officials were asking resi
dents of Derwent to consider leaving 
their homes. Some 50 minutes later, offi
cials learrjed that iaw-Iying areas of 
Qujiker City were starting lo flood (see 
separate storyl, 

On Saturday moming, Byesville police 
officers were asking residents of Peters 
Sueel to leave as waters rose in file vil-
lage-

Laier Saturday, water bfgan to sObSide 
oniy to return in places in" the late i h -
noon. At 6 p.m Saturday, a portio i I 
Nfalil Street was closed. Ptl. Tim H i 
said- Water also was encroachinj. ^ 
High Avenue. ; , 

A Senecaville area rnan died Fi * i 
afternoon. It was unclear whether i) 
death was attributable to the flood. 

At 2:! 9 p.m., an Ideal Road w. i ai 
reported she had jusi come honit im 
found her husband watn't brea ' ii 
right. ... -

A deputy arrived at the scene and |n.r 
formed cardio-pulmonary resu&citj ici i 
Because of high water̂  the Lore ' i 
emergency squad could not get thrcu J i 

. ^ ^ P iclb bj Cry* fti Vargq 
Flood ifnters FridayJtt the Broadway Strci i •» i if Un iki r ( if. Si>i Hinrv iin 

A binlbniKc perLhed atop a ^t«p sign appears io4»l (hc^tn 
vntii hv flfiod Htttcr^ in Uils phi>Utf>raph^fninitlie' 

I ni ir l AnibuliUL' persuiUK.) imCcd ^^ A'•Chci 
lid I nnMite to tilt ho>-pjtil -wisrc ciicort" -j^dronAif^rn! 
(.d bv 1 henff's dLpiity Injin Iduif RojwO^Bu^njV J M 
toUiL irth Strut Bndje in n.isvillc V.j,^flo'»<| '̂ "̂̂  

nil S îiurd-'j It 122 am -^'^lignfli.'^ O '̂*' 
RjoJ in I" ft 1 n,pi»<t_ I *o^^ e^pencflc** frfj 
I. s-rfLre pjClTffetn-. in treStii.nc * *^S' '*^^h 

gujki.rCiti' did not hdic^ ̂ aUdcTsvail^ 
able i n i could not ^h pj^t l^nuf"^ '* 
Ih.cjJ(.Lof high wntfcrpificiaK^' 
tpcred Hams^ville pQi>.f^lttirw] 
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Kevin Macrl/Tha Dally Jeffersonian 
Caldwell remained closed Friday as flood waters escaped the banks of fhick 

his photo wa.s taken at 4:30 p.m.. water was crossing the eastern portion of the 
[jhtfall, water was rushing over the bridge. 

e County Sheriff Smith 
ibits travel during flood 
AU 

— Noble 
is arc calling 
ig'̂  floodmg 
ea by Hurricane 
ai match to the 

Sheriff Landon 
d the county to 
emergency pro-
ctes except for 
ponders from 
in the t;ounty 

'riday until day-
;oming," 

state officials 
:• 11. The high-
8:20 p.m. 

El's flood waters 
se," comparison, 
lood of 1998. • .,-
as in different 
more.water on 

'te' ExpcrieiEiBa^ 
;> ̂ several:" otfic^!! 
jiSiy;; We,.wei^> 
3 of flooding 
m^leyels,"'^-;;, 
ty ••.'Emergency • 
.gelicy';Direct6r-., 
izieiibach' report/. 

"This-is a picture in front of my home taken at 1 p.ni. on Fridav. 
My home is located on State Route ]471)efween Sarahsville and 
State Route 78.-My flood_is^beaded toward CamhndRC," vtTite 
Bob Joy in an e-mail to The DaUy Jeffersonian neHsroom. 

Valley Volunteer - Fire 

i^fii^pH|f*W,«in^i^,sheln-
ineotCtviBro^un; •operation iin, die 
• c p ^ i ^ t j C ^ : ' . - ; . - ' . "-•'•''•: •• 

, ."In the. eastern end. of' the; 
county, customers on Yoker 
Valley' Road Were without 
phone.."",service: Other ".sporadic'̂  
:phone "."problems •were. .:expen.(: 
-pnrp.fi ("hrnifohtiiit tlip- r-rntntii/ ''-•.•:: 

However extenviv.: damige is 
estiî kiFite4,at the village s sewer 
plant facility, LaiiglL-y also 
reported high \\ aler le\cls inside 
the village's.muiiiLipal bjildiiig, 
damage; esti^nd•e^ w,ere rot 
available however â . of Fnday 

•."evening-. ,v. '; • 
,̂'-R the shcnlf s 

• office .:af . .11;; p m , indinted 

. t Kevin Macrl/Tha Dally Jalfaraon 
Flood waters froto Hurricane Kan covered Noble County Koad 14 n ^ r Wolf Run'State Pi 
Lake on Friday, tfie only access road to the Noble County Emergency Management Ag«n 
Emergency Opeiations Center. ,~ 

Saan Set 11**!) Lail/ Jpftprtoi 
A barricade put up by the Cambridge Street Dvpartment blocks the wa^ ihiutiji I iiiritii ^ 
into Eastmoor Addition on Saturday following Friday's day->long rain. 

' * * • T ? i ^ ' ' • * 

Sann .>LD*L7h« DalUMIirririoi 
Playground equipment at the park ill liulTili <-il iiinmn Kd IM S I H I il fi-il nf tliHid (tiiu.r 
tndDy evening!afterraiiLSfromHurdi-dm Uin drtniln^ tin lu l i i i i l iihi,il JitlJu " ' "̂  



EDWARD A. BISCHOfF. P.E.. P.S.. PRESIDENT 

Professional Background 

As founder and president of Bischoff Miller & Associates, LLC, 
Edward Bischoff has extensive experience in planning, designing, 
constructing and administering utilities, drainage facilities, 
transportation systems, and municipal services. Mr. BischofPs 
philosophy is to provide quality engineering services to public 
entities and private businesses at a reasonable price. He believes in 
providing clients with honest, professional advice that is in the best 
interest of their projects. 

Mr. BischofPs experience over the past forty years includes work in 
Asia, Europe and the United States. While in the United States Air 
Force and the Ohio Air National Guard, he served in Korea, France 
and Germany, as well as taking civil engineering teams to various 
Air Force Bases in the United States. One of the most challenging 
experiences was during his tour in Korea where, because of the massive build-up of personnel, the 
water treatment plants were in desperate situations. As the Director of Engineering and Construction 
for the Air Force in Korea, Mr. Bischoff was involved in developing and implementing solutions to 
improve these conditions. The water treatment plant at Kunsun Air Base was a diatomaceous earth 
plant with a demand almost twice its capacity. The plant's equipment was primarily Japanese, being 
operated by American and Korean operators. By coordinating the work of several Air Force 
agencies and the local Korean agencies, the capacity of the plant was quickly increased using 
temporary facilities until the permanent expansion could be built. His experience also includes work 
on wastewater collection and treatment systems of all sizes, utilizing a variety of equipment, 
materials, technology and treatment methods. He has been instrumental in the long ranging planning 
and growth for many community utility systems, including the formation of many water and/or 
sewer districts throughout the State of Ohio. 

Mr. Bischoff also has extensive experience in non-complex roadway design and construction. As the 
former Consulting Engineer for both the City of Grove City and the Village of Powell, he was 
directly involved in numerous projects including non-complex roadway design, traffic control 
studies and plans, traffic signal plans, intersection design and improvements, street lighting, drainage 
plans and right-of-way relocation. 

His common sense approach to business and engineering solutions has played a major role in the 
firm's success as well as its clients' success. Through his direction, Bischoff Miller & Associates, 
LLC develops programs to provide clients with much needed assistance in problem solving, creative 
planning and project financial strategies to develop workable solutions. Mr. Bischoff has always 
taken an active, innovative role in finding new solutions and establishing new industry standards. On 
several occasions, he has also provided support for his clients by serving as an expert witness in 
various legal proceedings. He and his firm continue to set engineering examples through superior 
service, unique mechanical layouts, state-of-the-art systems and environmentally sound solutions. 

Mr. Bischoff s management style is evident in his passion for helping people succeed whether the 
association is that of employee, friend or client. 



Professional Oualifications 

B.S. Civil Engineering, The Ohio State University 
Registered Professional Engineer (Ohio) 
Registered Professional Surveyor (Ohio) 
Lieutenant Colonel, United States Air Force (Retired) 

Associations and Affiliations 

Ohio Society of Professional Engineers 
Triangle Fraternity 
Engineers Foundation of Ohio (former President) 
Math & Science Network of Central Ohio 
Ohio Mathematics & Science Coalition 
Ohio School Board Association 

Delaware Jobs for Ohio Graduates 
The Air Force Association 
Delaware/Union County Education Svc. Ctr. 
Delaware Area Career Center School Board 
OSU Wetiands Advisory Board 
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